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About the Cover

Celebrating Earth! Our planet is very unique in many ways
and it's our only home.

But UN report shows human activity has changed the planet
forever. We must act now to keep global warming below 1.5°
Celsius and avoid the worst impacts of the climate crisis.
We must conserve this beautiful and unique planet.



The image below shows global temperature anomalies in 2021,
the sixth warmest year on record. Nine of the ten hottest
years or records have occurred in the past decade.

Temperature Anomaly (°C compared to the 1951-1980 average)
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A forest is incinerated near Midpines, northeast..cif Mquposa as the
wildfire ripped through the area.

Source: www.theguardian.com/environment/gallery/2022/jul/25/california-wildfires-in-pictures
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Vision
At Premium Textile Mills Ltd we envisage ourselves as a leading company in the
manufacturing of value-added yarn. Our relentless endeavors are directed to make our

customers view Premium as a reliable brand that gets to the future first. —
Mission
. . . . . -
Our mission is to manage and operate the company in @ ma allows continued
growth and profitability without high risk for investors. We do thi ering quality
products to our customers, by constantly striving to improve our product to meet our
customer's needs and by trying to keep abreast of the new developments taking place in the
textile world.
Premium Textiles Mills Ltd. is committed to increasing its value to customers, employees &
shareholders by providing products and services to the concerns that it serves. We conduct
iy operations by the principles of good corporate governa safe & healthy working
conditions for all"employees. We strive to be an mtegral pa to fulfill the
ibilities towards the societies and communities hich it o erctes w .
responsibilities towar ieti n _H_J‘I in which it op i | -
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BUSINESS CONDUCT
& CODE OF ETHICS

Build Trust and Credibility

The success of our business is dependent on the trust and
confidence we earn from our employees, customers, and
shareholders. We gain credibility by adhering to our
commitments, displaying honesty and integrity, and reaching
company goals solely through honorable conduct. It is easy
to say what we must do, but the proof is in our actions.
Ultimately, we will be judged on what we do.

Respect for the Individual

Premium Textile Mills Ltd. is an equal
employment/affirmative action employer and is committed
to providing a workplace that is free of discrimination of all
types from abusive, offensive, or harassing behavior. Any
employee who feels harassed or discriminated against
should report the incident to his or her manager or to human
resources.

Create a Culture of Open and
Honest Communication

Premium Textile Mills Ltd. will investigate all reported
instances of questionable or unethical behavior. In every
instance where improper behavior is found to have occurred,
the company will take appropriate action. We will not
tolerate retaliation against employees who raise genuine
ethics concerns in good faith.

Uphold the Law

Premium Textile Mills Ltd's commitment to integrity begins
with complying with laws, rules, and regulations where we do
business.

Proprietary Information

It is important that we respect the proprietary rights of
others. We will not acquire or seek to acquire improper
means of a competitor's trade secrets or other proprietary or
confidential information. We will not engage in unauthorized
use, copying, distribution, or alteration of software or other
intellectual property.

Selective Disclosure

We will not selectively disclose (whether in one-on-one or
small discussions, meetings, presentations, proposals or
otherwise) any material nonpublic information with respect
to Premium Textile Mills Ltd, its securities, business
operations, plans, financial condition, results of operations or
any development plan.

Health and Safety

Premium Textile Mills Ltd. is dedicated to maintaining a
healthy environment. A safety manual has been
designed to educate you on safety in the workplace.

Conflicts of Interest

We must avoid any relationship or activity that might
impair, or even appear to impair, our ability to make
objective and fair decisions when performing our jobs.
We must never use Premium Textile Mills Ltd. property or
information for personal gain or personally take for
ourselves any opportunity that is discovered through
our position with Premium Textile Mills Ltd.

Gifts, Gratuities, and Business
Courtesies

Premium Textile Mills Ltd. is committed to competing
solely on the merit of our products and services. We will
neither give nor accept business courtesies that
constitute, or could reasonably be perceived as
constituting, unfair business inducements that would
violate law, regulation, or policies of Premium Textile
Mills Ltd. or customers, or would cause embarrassment
or reflect negatively on Premium Textile Mills Ltd's
reputation.

Accurate Public Disclosures

We will make certain that all disclosures made in
financial reports and public documents are full, fair,
accurate, timely, and understandable.

Corporate Recordkeeping

We create, retain, and dispose of our company records
as part of our normal course of business in compliance
with all Premium Textile Mills Ltd. policies and guidelines,
as well as all regulatory and legal requirements.

All corporate records must be true, accurate, and
complete, and company data must be promptly and
accurately entered into our books in accordance with
Premium Textile Mills Ltd's and other applicable
accounting principles.

Confidential and Proprietary
Information
We will not disclose confidential and nonpublic

information without a valid business purpose and proper
authorization.
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PREMIUM AT
A GLANCE

Our Story

Ever since the inception of Premium Textile Mills Ltd. took

place in 1989 the group has successfully diversified into
the manufacturing of garments & auto parts and trading
employing more than 1000 people in its work force. The
relentless perseverance of the formative years has been
the guiding principle for the group to achieve an annual
turnover in excess of Rs.19 billion. However, as the
flagship company, Premium Textile Mills Ltd remains the
major contributor in the brilliant standing of the group.

Premium Textiles started its operations with 12,230
spindles serving only the local market in the initial years.
It is now annually producing approximately 42,257,781 Kg
(based on 20/1) with 91,782 spindles. Currently, the
company is operating in both local and international
horizons that have brought the company to a reckoned
position in a competitive industry. With a commitment to
invest every year in BMR, Premium Textiles is geared
towards acquiring the latest technology to provide
better value for money to our customers in the form of
Premium yarn. The company is also operating its own
power generation plant to ascertain uninterrupted power
supply all the year round.

Having served customers in the Americas, Europe, Middle
East, Central Asia and Far East we have the requisite
experience and feel of the customers around the world.
Acquisition of latest technology coupled with stringent
quality control measures have given us an edge that
reflects in our quality and the portfolio of satisfied
customers. Our standards of business ethics and the
human capital form the assets that are revered not only
throughout the organization but also in the industry.

Product Portfolio

Yarn

« Mélange yarn

* Injection Yarn

« Snow Effect Yarn

« Marled Yarn

» Speckled Yarn

» Heather Grey Yarn

« Open End Recycled Yarn

Socks

» Anti Skid Socks

* Low Cut Socks

« Footlet/Invisible Socks
« Work Boot Socks

» Diabetic Socks

* Thermal Boot Socks

» Men's Dress Socks

» Casual Socks

» Football/Soccer Socks
» Skiing Socks

« Wool Socks



Our
Journey

1994-1998

« Established Premium Knits
Pvt Ltd
» Became award winning

exporters

1989-1993

» Started operations with 12,230
spindles

« Introduced the widest range of
fancy yarns

« Started Export in the Middle
East & Europe

« Established Prudential
Enterprises

2004-2008

» Established second spinning
unit with 24,000 spindles
» Added 6,564 spindles

1999-2003

» Set up Sampling Facility
» Expanded Export Market in
America

2009-2013

» Added 7,224 Spindles
e Construction of Unit 3



2019-2022

Established Premium Knits
Pvt Ltd

Got the Latest OE & MVS
Rotors

Set Fiber dyeing facility
Set Yarn Dying facility
Founded Socks
Manufacturing Plant
Installed 3 MW Grid Tied
Solar Power Generation
System

Installed ETP

Set up Waste Heat
Recovery System

Set up 15SMW Power Plant

2014-2018

« -Established Pinnacle Fiber -
Pakistan’s largest rPET
processors

» -Set up Margasa- Cotton
Recycling Plant
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CORPORATE
SUSTAINABILITY
INITIATIVES

We're working to deliver a sustainable future by
collaborating and innovating to expand our ability to make
a positive impact on society and the planet. Our
sustainability efforts encompass multiple domains, which

include:

Environmental

Environmental sustainability and working towards a better
future is an integral parts of our core values. Sustainability
is part of every organizational operation at PTML We are
investing heavily in sustainable alternatives for
manufacturing, power generation, waste management, and
water stewardship. We have attained a number of
certifications for sustainability and innovation in all phases

of the value chain.

Social

Any company’s most valued asset is its people. At PTML we
continuously stretch our efforts to provide facilities to our
workforce. Comfortable accommodation at a factory and in
the city, providing a conducive work environment,
subsidized meals at the mill, commute services, and
conveyance allowance. We have a very comprehensive
retirement plan for our employees for a secure retirement.
The Company maintains working conditions that are safe
and without risk to the health of all employees and the
public at large, our focus remains on improving all aspects
of safety, especially with regards to the safety in
production, delivery, storage, and handling of materials.
Safety equipment including fire extinguishers has been
placed at different places in the Mills as well as the
registered head office of the company. Regular visit doctor
to the mill has been made possible to provide medical

advice and treatment.

Economic

Premium Textile contributes to the national economy on
account of Taxes & Other levies; during the period under
review, our company paid Rs.562.88 million as tax &

customs duties.

Certifications and corporate
affiliations for environmental
sustainability
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SUSTAINABILITY
DEVELOPMENT

GOALS

We contribute to achieving the SDGs (Sustainable Development Goals) through our business activities in a broad

range of markets associated with ocean, land, and air transport.

CLEAN WATER
AND SANITATION

e Controlled &
hygienic water
dispensing system
RO Plant
Controlled
plumbing &

sanitation system

12 RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

QO

» Margasa, textile
recycling plant
Producing Yarn with
reclaimed material
like r-PET sourced
from Pinnacle
fibers, a subsidiary
of Premium Textile

Mills

1 CLIMATE
ACTION

3 2

Miyawaki Forest
underway; A
magnificent and

eco-friendly project

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Integrated Building
Management System
(iBMS)

USGB Leed
Certification

Selection of industry
4.0 machines, equipped
with regenerated

motors

1 LIFE BELOW
WATER

ETP 750 m3/day
Reusing dyeing water
discharge for fiber
stamping machine
Minimum dyeing liquor
Ratio

Employment of Nano-
Bubble technology in

wet processing

1 SUSTAINABLE CITIES
AND COMMUNITIES

N

Implemented
policies for
inclusion, resource
efficiency, &
disaster risk
reduction

Green spaces at Mill
for workers & their

families

19 viuwe

Obtained certifications
like Cyclo to produce
recycled yarn hence
preserving natural

resources




CEO'S
MESSAGE

Our ambition is to Living up to our reputation, we have set goals to cater
to our clients’ satisfaction while keeping environmental

drive sustainable (CHENLS SERS
sustainability in mind.

long-term growth,

build a stron g With our existing textile export, we aspire to expand our

business and help international presence by diversr business
portfolio thus maximizing.returns for our.shareholders,
shape a better world S 4

workers, customers.g e community at large. The

for the generations latest addition ur portfolio is our socks
to come.” manufa g unit with the most technologically

adyg d manufacturing setup of Sbys fully automated
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s_,J: to establish an educational facility in
|.p‘*.wul;I'rThe Citizens Foundation (TCF) to

d fﬁr Fﬂfedyeatlon opportunities to
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""""Famllle-s; we have mcuhtalned open spaces and parks in
< -"!‘J'Ie mill's vicinity.
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noreover, we are committed to mobilizing fmances

By 1 " f J_': rds.sustamable solutions including.low-carbon,
e 2 .m:i# snewable energy, and water stewardship initiatives.
-r 7 our ongomg projects include the expansion of the Solar
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Sl L Power pro;ect an effluent treatment plant with a
T o capa¢1ﬁl of 7$Ocub|c meters/day. We have recently
4 adoﬁted an urban forest plan to establish a green space
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= o £ = . within our mill's vicinity.
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) s . We desire to be known as forward-looking, innovative,
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" and leading manufacturers in the textile world.
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Mr. Abdul Kadir Haji
Adam

Chief Executive

Mr. Abdul Kadir is the Chief Executive of Premium Textile. He possesses wide experience in
the textile Business. He has been in the business for more than 45 years. He has full
knowledge of working in Textiles and provides guidance to the management for the
smooth running of the mills, future planning, and selection of the right person for the job.
He traveled abroad and enjoys a good reputation both in and outside the country. He is

also on the Board of other companies & trusts.



Mr. Mohammed Yasin Siddik

Executive Director

Education:

Matric Graduation

St. Patrick's School Karachi (1973) St. Patrick's College Karachi. (1979)

Post-Graduation MBA.

Institute of Business Administration, Karachi (1982)

Working Experience:

Internship with Grindlays Bank Ltd.

1982 went into the field of ship breaking at Gadani Beach and continued for 5- years during which 7 vessels were
dismantled.

Took dealership of Pakistan Steels and Peoples Steel Mills and traded in steel for S years

Set up Premium Textile Mills Ltd.

Started a Spinning mill based on 12,380 spindles in the Public Listed Sector and gradually increased it now to 91,782
spindles. The company is by the name of Premium Textile Mills Limited and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.
The annual turnover now is above Rs 19.9 Billion.

Have held the office of Chairman APTMA (Sindh Baluchistan.) for 3 years.

Was elected Chairman APTMA (All Pakistan.) 2013-2014.



Mr. Mohammed Aslam
Parekh

Chairman

Mr.Aslam Parekh is the Chairman of Premium Textile Mills
Ltd and has been associated with Premium textile Mills
Ltd since 1990, being a Director of other companies takes
and accepts challenges and takes decisions in critical
situations & scenarios. He also plans & forecasts for both
long- & short-term positions. He actively participates in
planning for the new projects and bared in an excellent
manner for expansion & development. He attained very
good experience in Textile Spinning, weaving & finishing.
He has the experience and is competent in business
dealing especially for procurement of plant & machinery.

Mr. Mohammed Ali
Jaliawala

Non-Executive Director Independent Director

Mr. MAli Jaliawala has been associated with Premium
Textile Mills since 1990, being a Director he has
undertaken various expansion projects for Textile. The
textile has quite complex dimensions due to seasonal
exposure and hence requires efficient planning. He is
experienced and competent in business dealings,
especially for procurement of raw materials & others
assets. He has a rich experience in export sales as well as
in the local market.

Mr. Mohammed Tufail

Non-Executive Director Independent Director

Mr. Tufail Sattar joined the Board as a Director in 1998. He
is also a member of the audit Committee at Premium
Textile Mills Ltd. Mr. Tufail Sattar graduated with a
Bachelor's degree in Business administration from
Whittier College, California. He is also a partner in
Prudential Enterprises, a trading company dealing in home
textiles and dairy ingredients. He attended very good
experience in Textile, participating in the planning of

expansions and new projects.

Ms. Lubna Asif

Non-Executive Director Independent Director

Ms. Lubna Asif joined the Board in February 2021. She
graduated from St. Joseph's College. She has strong
leadership skills to manage and improve the operational
efficiency of the organization. She is involved in
monitoring budgets, suggesting improvements in
information systems, and developing organizational

policies and procedures. She has also helped in developing
our marketing strategy and marketing plan.

Mr. Tanzeel Abdul
Sattar (NIT Nominee)

Non-Executive Director Independent Director

Mr. Tanzeel Abdul Sattar has been associated with NIT
(National Investment Trust Ltd). He has had five year of
experience in Mutual fund Industry and has earned
experience of all facets of finance Division of the Asset
Management Company (includes trust Accounts and
Management Company Accounts). He also served as
Departmental Head since 4 years with strong background
in financial & business management , Strategic Planning,
Budget Administration, Audit coordination & Tax planning.
He was also associated with KPMG for three years as
Supervisor responsible in planning & finalization of audit

having IT experience.



BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
COMMITTEE

1. Audit Committee

The Board of Directors in compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance has established an Audit
Committee and the following Directors are its members:

Mr. Mohammed Tufail Sattar Chairman
Mr. Mohammed Ali Jaliawala Member

Ms. Lubna Asif Member

The terms of reference of the audit committee shall also

include the following:

1. The Audit Committee shall recommend to the Board of
Directors the appointment of external auditors, their
removal, audit fees, and the provision by the external
auditors of any service to the company in addition to the
audit of its financial statements.

2. Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard

the company's assets;

3. Review of quarterly, half-yearly, and annual financial
statements of the company, prior to their approval by the
Board of Directors, focusing on:

Major judgmental areas;

Significant adjustments resulting from the audit;
The going concern assumption;
Any changes in accounting policies and practices;

Compliance with applicable accounting
standards;

Compliance with listing regulations and other
statutory and regulatory requirements; and
significantly related party transactions.

4. Review of preliminary announcements of results prior to

publication;

S. Facilitating the external audit and discussion with

external auditors of major observations arising from

22 | Premium Textile Mills Limited

interim and final audits and any matter that the
auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence of
management, where necessary);

6. Review of management letter issued by external
auditors and management's response thereto;

7. Ensuring coordination between the internal and

external auditors of the company;

8. Review the scope and extent of internal audit and
ensure that the internal audit function has adequate
resources and is appropriately placed within the

company;

9. Consideration of major findings of internal
investigations of activities characterized by fraud,
corruption, and abuse of power and management's
response thereto;

10. Ascertaining that the internal control systems
including financial and operational controls,
accounting systems for timely and appropriate
recording of purchases and sales, receipts and
payments, assets and liabilities, and the reporting

structure are adequate and effective;

11. Review of the company's statement on internal
control systems prior to endorsement by the Board of
Directors and internal audit reports;

12. Instituting special projects, value for money studies,
or other investigations on any matter specified by the
Board of Directors, in consultation with the CEO and
to consider remittance of any matter to the external
auditors or to any other external body;

13. Determination of compliance with relevant
statutory requirements;

14. Monitoring compliance with the best practices of
corporate governance and identification of significant
violations thereof; and

15. Consideration of any other issue or matter as may
be assigned by the Board of Directors.



2. Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee (HR&R)

The Human Resource and Remuneration (HR&R) Committee
has three members comprising a majority of non executive
directors including the Chairman of the Committee.

Mr. Mohammed Ali Jaliawala Chairman
Mr. Mohammed Tufail Sattar Member
Ms. Lubna Asif Member

The terms of reference of the HR & R committee shall also
include the following:

1. Recommending human resource management policies to the
board;

2. Recommending to the board the selection, evaluation,
compensation (including retirement benefits), and succession
planning of the CEO.

3. Recommending to the board the selection, evaluation, and
compensation (including retirement benefits) of COO, CFO,
Company Secretary, and Head internal Audit; and

4. Consideration and approval of recommendations of CEO on

such matters for key management positions who report
directly to CEO or COO.

23 | Premium Textile Mills Limited



ORGANOGRAM

CHAIRMAN
& BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAIRMAN OF
AUDIT COMMITTEE

HEAD OF INTERNAL
AuDIT
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MANAGER EXPORT MANAGER LOCAL
SALE sALE MANAGER IT/IS DGM FINANCE MANAGER FINANGE MANAGER ACCOUNTS MILL MANAGERS

ORGANIZATION
STRUCTURE

Mr. Mohammad Aslam (Chairman)

Mr. Abdul Kadir Haji Adam (Chief Executive)

Mr. Mohammad Yasin Siddik (Executive Director)
Mr. Mohammad Ali Jaliawala (Director)

Mr. Mohammad Tufail (Director)

Ms.Lubna Asif (Director)

Mr. Tanzeel Abdul Sattar (NIT) (Director)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL

GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that

NOTICE is hereby given that the 35th Annual General
Meeting of the Shareholders of PREMIUM TEXTILE MILLS
LIMITED will be held on Wednesday the 26th October 2022
at 12:00 noon at Registered Office 1st Floor, Haji Adam
Chambers, Altaf Hussain Road, Karachi, to transact the

following business:

1.To confirm minutes of the 34thAnnual General Meeting
held on October 27, 2021.

2.To receive, consider and adopt the Report of Directors,
Auditors, and Audited Accounts of the Company for the
year ended 30th June 2022.

3.To approve the payment of the Final cash dividend @
500% (i.e.Rs 50.00/- per share) as recommended by the
Board of Directors. Additionally, the Interim cash
dividend @ 500% (i.e Rs. 50/- per share as
recommended by the Board of Directors has already
been paid.

4.To appoint Auditors for the next year 2022-2023 and fix
their remuneration. Special Business

Karachi:
O4th October, 2022

Participation in AGM through on line
facilities or physical presence:

In the light of the relevant guidelines issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) vide their circular No.5 of 2020 dated: March
17,2020 has advised to the Listed Companies to
modify their usual planning for Annual General
Meeting.

The shareholders of PTML are encouraged to
participate in the 35th AGM through electronic
means as offered by the Company and get
themselves registered with Company’s Share
Registrar i.e. M/s. FD Registrar Services (SMC-Pvt)

5.To consider and if thought fit ; approve to increase

the Directors' remuneration

“RESOLVED by way of special resolution ,approval
of the members to increase the remuneration of the

working Directors”

Chief Executive Mr. Abdul Kadir Adam from
Rs.1,015,000 to Rs.1,250,000 and Executive Director
Mr. Yasin Siddik from Rs.810,000 to Rs. 1,000,000
per month.

6.To transact any other business with the permission
of the Chair.

By order of the Board of Directors

Acur L

YASIN SIDDIK

Executive Director

| Ltd.at least 48 hours before the meeting time of
AGM at fdregistrar@yahoo.com. In order to facilitate
the shareholders the company in addition to
convening a physical meeting has arranged
attendance of shareholders virtually.



The shareholders will be able to login and participate
in the 35th AGM proceedings through their smart
phones or computer devices from their homes or
any convenient location after completing all the
required formalities for verification and
identification of the shareholders.

The login facility will be opened at 11.30 a.m. on
October 26, 2022 enabling the participants to join
the proceedings which will be started at 12.00 noon
sharp.

The shareholders are requested to provide the
information as per the below format. The details of
the video link will be sent to the shareholders on the

email address provided in the below table:

under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular
No.l dated January 26, 2020 issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP).

iv- Accordingly this notice of AGM of the
Company shall be dispatched to the shareholders
through CD compact device and shall be
electronically available on the PUCARS system of
the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and the
Company's website (www.premiumtextile.com) under
“Notice to Shareholders”. Shareholders are
requested to provide the Company their email
addresses at info@premiumtextile.com if notice of
the meeting is required through email.

Name of
S.No. Shareholder CNIC Number

Folio/CDS Email

Cell Number

AC Number Address

Shareholders may send their queries, comments and
suggestions relating to the proposed agenda items of
the 35th AGM of the Company at least two working
days before the AGM, at fdregistrar@yahoo.com or
Whatsapp or SMS on Cell no. 0309-2953146 (timing
9.00 amto 6 pm) Shareholders are required to mention
their full name, CNIC number and Folio/CDS number for
the purpose.

NOTES:
1.Closure of Share Transfer Books

i-The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain
closed from 20st October 2022 to 26th October 2022
(both days inclusive), when no transfers of shares will
be accepted for registration. Transfer received in order
at the office of Share Registrar, F.D. Registrar Services
(SMC-Pvt) Ltd, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, 1.
Chundrigar Road, Karachi by the close of business on
19th October, 2022 will be considered in time to
determine the above mentioned entitlement to the
transferee and to attend and vote at the meeting.

ii-A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and
vote on his / her behalf. A proxy need not be a member
of the company. Instrument of appointing proxy and the
power of attorney or other authority under which it is
signed or a certified copy of the power or authority
must be submitted at the Registered Office of the
Company at least 48 hours before the time of the
Meeting.

iii- CDC Account Holders will have to follow the

2.Attending the Meeting

i-Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled
to attend and vote at this meeting, must bring
his/her Original CNIC or Passport to prove his/her
identity and in case of Proxy must enclose
additionally an attested copy of his/her CNIC or
Passport.

ii- Incase of corporate entity, The Board of
Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be
produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at
the time of the meeting.

3. For appointing proxies:

i-In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-
account holder and/or the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration details
are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit
the proxy form as per the above requirement.
ii-The proxy form shall be witnessed by two
persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
iii-Certified copies of CNIC or the passport of the
beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

iv-In case of corporate entity, the Board of
Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it
has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to
the Company.




4.Changes in Members Addresses

Shareholders maintaining their shares in electronic
form should have their addresses updated with
their participant or CDC Investor Accounts
Service.

5.Submission of copies of CNIC and NTN
Certificate (Mandatory)

Pursuant to the directive of the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).
Dividend Warrants shall mandatorily bear the
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC)
numbers of shareholders. Shareholders are
therefore requested to fulfill the statutory
requirements and submit a copy of their CNIC (if
not already provided) to the Company’s Share
Register, M/s Premium Textile Mills Limited without
any delay.

In case of non-availability of a valid copy of the
Shareholders CNIC in the records of the Company,
the Company shall be constrained to withhold the
Dividend Warrants in, which will be released by the
Share Registrar only upon submission of a valid
copy of the CNIC in compliance with the aforesaid
SECP directives.

6. Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically
(Mandatory)

Under the provisions of Section 242 of the
Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed
Company to pay a cash dividend to its
shareholders only through electronic mode directly
into a bank account designated by the entitled
shareholders. Therefore, shareholders are
requested to provide the details of their bank
mandate specifying: (a) title of account, (b)
account number (¢) IBAN (d) bank name, and (e)
branch name, code, and address to the Company
& Share Registrar.

Those shareholders who hold shares with
participants / Central Depository Company of
Pakistan (CDC) are advised to provide the same
to their concerned participants / CDC.

Please note that as per Section 243(3) of the
Companies Act, 2017, listed companies are
entitled

to withhold payment of dividends, if the necessary
information is not provided by shareholders.
Shares are held in CDC the Electronic Credit
Mandate Form must be submitted directly to the
shareholder’s broker/participant/CDC account

services.

7. Withholding Tax on Dividend Income:

The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act.
2017 has made certain amendments in section 150
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby
different rates are prescribed for deduction of
withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by
the companies. These tax rates are as under:

For Fil f
) . or Filer o 15 %
income tax returns

() A For Non-Filer 30 %
of income tax returns

Shareholders, who are filers, are advised to make
sure that their names are entered into latest Active
Tax Payers List (ATL) provided on the website of
FBR at the time of dividend payment, otherwise
they shall be treated as non-filers and tax on their
cash dividend will be deducted at the rate of 30%
instead of 15%.

8.Withholding Tax on Dividend in case of Joint
Account Holders

In order to enable the Company to follow the
directives of the regulators to determine
shareholding ratio of the Joint Account Holder(s)
(where shareholding has not been determined by the
Principal shareholder) for deduction of withholding
tax on dividends of the Company, shareholders are
requested to please furnish the shareholding ratio
details of themselves as Principal shareholder and
their Joint Holders, to the Company’s Share
Registrar, in writing as per format given below
enabling the Company to Compute withholding tax
of each shareholder accordingly.



Principal Shareholder

Joint Shareholder(s)

Company Folio/CDC Total
Name Account No. | Shares

Name &
CNIC No.

Shareholding
Proportion(No. of
Shares)

Shareholding
Proportion
(No. of shares)

Name & CNIC No.

The required information must reach our Share
Registrar within 15 Days of this notice; otherwise it will
be assumed that the shares are equally held by
Principal Shareholder and Joint Holder(s).

Withholding tax exemption from dividend income shall
only be allowed if a copy of a valid tax exemption
certificate is made available to the Company’s Share
Registrar by 19th October, 2022.

9. Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on
Website

In accordance with the provisions of Section 223(7) of
the Companies Act, 2017, the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended June
30, 2022, are available on the Company’s website
(http://www.premiumtextile.com).

10. Transmission of Audited Financial Statements
Through Compact Device (CD)

SECP, through SRO 470(1)/ 2016 dated May 31, 2016,
has allowed circulating their annual balance sheet,
profit & (loss) account, auditor’s report, and director’s
report to its members through CD at their registered
addresses. In view of the above Company has sent its
Annual Report to the shareholders in the form of CD.
Any member requiring a printed copy of the Annual
Report 2022 may send a request using a “Standard
Request Form” placed on the Company’s website
(http://www.premiumtextile.com).

Members who are interested in receiving the annual
reports and notice of the annual general meeting
electronically in the future are requested to send their
email addresses on the consent form placed on the
Company'’s website (www.premiumtextile.com) to the
Company's Share Registrar.

11.Unclaimed/Unpaid Shares and Dividends

In accordance with the provisions of Section 244 of
the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or
dividend declared by the Company, which remain
unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from
the date it is due and payable, the Company shall
proceed to deposit the unclaimed or unpaid Dividends
with the Federal Government..

12.Deposit of Physical Shares in CDC account

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every
existing listed company shall be required to replace its
physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as
may be specified and from the date notified by the
Commission, within a period not exceeding four years
from the commencement of this Act i.e, May 30, 2017.

The Shareholders having physical shareholding are
encouraged to open a CDC sub-account with any of
the brokers or Investor Accounts directly with CDC to
place their physical shares into scrip less form. This will
facilitate them in many ways including safe custody
and sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading
of physical shares is not permitted as per existing
regulations of the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

The Directors are pleased to present to you the 35th Annual Report together with the Audited accounts of the

Company for the year ended 30th June 2022 for your consideration and approval.

PKR Million 2022 2021
Operating Profit 4,956,172,338 2,069 720,237
Financial & Others (346,662,750) (565,788,183)
Profit before Tax 4,609,509,588 1,503,932,054
Tax (299,132,208) (117,673,260)
Profit after tax 4,310,377,380 1,386,258,794
Earnings per share 699.40 22493
Gross Margin % 2794 % 2137 %
Operating Profit % 24.81 % 18.02%

Dividends:

The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended following final appropriations for the FY-21-22 for

approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 26th October, 2022:

Interim Cash Dividend of Rs. 50 /- per share ie 500%

Final Cash Dividend of Rs. 50/- Per share, i.e, 500% (2021: Rs 50/- per share, i.e,500%).

Financial Highlights

The net turnover of the Company grew by 73.95% from
Rs 11484 billion to 19.977 billion due to higher demand
and higher average selling prices. The gross margin
increased by 6.57% due to complete capacity
utilization, higher sales and effective cost control
mechanism. Finance Costs increased by 46.59% due to
increase in markup rates and increase in short term
borrowings.

Profit after tax for the year ended June 30, 2022 was
4.310 billion and EPS Rs.699.40 per share.

Business Performance
Highlights

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing
of yam.

PRODUCT DIVERSIFICATION AND IMPROVEMENT

We have acquired Auto Coro Textile machinery due to
which we have achieved new standards in energy
efficiency and productivity. It has reduced labour costs
and improved the quality of the yam extensively. It has
also aided to minimize maintenance costs.

Also, we have installed long frames with Link coners

which has helped in improvement in quality and
reduction in labour cost considerably.

On the other hand, we have implemented SAP B-1to
help manage financial operations & achieve business
objectives. It will help in achieving efficiency in meeting

our information technology needs.

We have increased our human resources strength in
order to accelerate performance & to achieve the
company objectives in line with its mission & vision
statement.

Forward Looking

The company has set up a socks manufacturing plant
considering its passion for innovation as well as its
focus on adding value and increasing export % in total
production. This achievement was possible with the
dedicated team of Premium Textile mills Ltd. In line with
the objectives of the company to constantly strive to
serve our customers better with products that meet the
highest quality standards and parameters. Socks have
immense export potential as well as huge growth
possibilities.



This project is as of today into trial production and has a
capacity to produce 165000 dozens per month when it
starts commercial production.

During the year under review following assets have been

added:

LAND Rs. 7.604 Million
BUILDING Rs. 182.710 Million
MACHINERY

Auto Coro -9 (3 SETS) Rs. 610.339 million
Spinning Assembly and Rings Rs. 33.868 million
Testing Instruments Rs. 30.796 million
Waste Recycling Machine Rs. 30.027 million
Blow Room Machinery Rs. 19.733 million
Yarn Conditioning Machine Rs. 19.701 million
Air Conditioning Plant Rs. 19128 million
Bale Press Rs. 12.074 million
Dust & Waste Removal system Rs. 10.635 million
Cooling Tower Rs. 8.859 million
Refrigeration Dryer Rs. 5767 million
Air Humidification Plant Rs. 4705 million
Fibre Glass Duct Rs 4.310 million
Roving Waste Operating Machine Rs 3.116 million
Auto Bale Plucker Rs. 3.6 million

MK -7 Chute Feed Rs. 21 million
Other Auxillary Machines Rs. 15.406 million
OFFICE & LAB EQUIPMENT Rs. 8.037 million
ELECTRICAL INSTALLATIONS Rs 203.424 million
FURNITURE & FIXTURES Rs. 8249 million
VEHICLES Rs. 218.773 million

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT Rs. 10.574 million



Corporate Environment
Health & Social Responsibility

The Company maintains working conditions which are
safe and without risk to the health of all employees and
public at large, our focus remains on improving all
aspects of safety especially with regards to the safety in
production, delivery, storage and handling of materials.
Safety equipment's including fire extinguishers have
been placed at different places in the Mills as well as
registered head office of the company. Regular visit of
doctor to mill has been made possible to provide medical
advice and treatment.

Board Committees

The committees of the Board comprise of:

(a)Audit Committee:

Mr. Mohammad Tufail Chairman
Mr. Mohammad Ali Jaliawala Member
Ms. Lubna Asif Member

Chairman Member Member

(b)HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Mohammad Ali Jaliawala Chairman
Mr. Mohammad Tufail Member
Ms. Lubna Asif Member

Contribution To National
Exchequer

Premium Textile contributes to the national economy
of account of Taxes & Other levies; during the period
under review, our company paid Rs.562.88-million as

tax & customs duties.

Charity and Donation

Charity and donations amounting to Rs.44.235 million
were paid during the period.

Rural Development Program

As the factory is situated on superhighway near
Nooriabad Industrial estate the employment has
been awarded to nearest locality persons in the fields
of manufacturing, loading, un-loading, packing,

security etc. Premium Textile Mills Ltd practices

active corporate citizenship through corporate
philanthropy, energy conservation, environmental
protection measures, community service, consumer
protection measures, employment of special persons,
occupational health and safety, business ethics,
anticorruption measures and contribution to national
exchequer.

Future Outlook

The tensions between Russia and Ukraine have
continued thereby creating greater global uncertainty.

A substantial increase in prices of fuel products and
food items will lead to high inflation levels throughout
the world. This, in turn, will put pressure on disposable
incomes whereby people will be forced to spend more
on food, electricity, and gas for heating and therefore
we forecast demand destruction for clothing items.

In such an environment it will be a tough road ahead for
the textile industry and it will require a lot more
vigilance and cost-cutting for which your company is
preparing beforehand by cutting down on costs and
increasing efficiency.

Corporate & Financial
Reporting Framework

Your company is committed to standards of corporate
governance and continually seeking improvements.
The company applies the principles contained in the
following manner.

a) The financial statements, prepared by the company,
fairly present its state of affairs in operations, cash
flows, and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of accounts have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in the preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment, of financial
statements and any deviation has been adequately
disclosed.

d) International Accounting Standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, have been followed in preparation.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and
has been effectively implemented and monitored.



f) There has been no deviation from the best practices
of corporate governance, as mentioned in the listing

regulations.

g) The Company's record shows growth in terms of

quantity and sales of value-added yarn as per plan

h) During the year under review four Board of Directors
meetings were held and attended as follows:

Name of Directors Meetings

keeping in view future prospects regarding sales, the 1 MrAslam Parekh 4
company has improved its production performance by 2. Mr. Abdul Kadir Adam 4
making a capital expenditure in different departments 3. Mr. MYasin Siddik 4
of the mill. This was done in line with the company's 4. Mr. Mohammad Tufail 4
objective of providing quality products and value- 5. Mr. Mohammad Ali Jaliawala 4
added yam. 6. Ms. Lubna Asif 4

7. Mr.Tanzeel Abdul Sattar 4

(NIT Nominee)
i) During the year under review, trading in shares of the
Company by the Directors, CEO and their spouses are
as follows:
Opening Balance Purchases/ Sale/Gifted Tansfer/Gifted Closing Balance
01-07-2021 30-06-2022

Mr.Abdul Kadir Adam 19,386 - 19,386
Mr. Yasin Siddik 284,075 12,000 - 296,075
Mrs.Nabila Yasin 121,858 - 121,858

Auditors

The Present Auditors of the Company M/S Rehman
Sarfraz Rahim Igbal Rafig (Chartered Accountants)
retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment as auditors for the ensuing year.

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding of the company as at June
30, 2022 is annexed.
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ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Abdul Kadir Adam
Chief Executive

O4th October, 2022
Karachi.
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Mr. Yasin Siddik
Executive Director



KEY FINANCIAL

DATA

Six Years at a Glance

2022

OPERATING DATA
Sales (net) 19,976,813,131
Cost of Goods sold 14,394,726,682
Gross profit 5,582,086,449
Operating profit 4,956,172,338
Financial charges and others 346,662,750
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 4,609,509,588
Profit/(Loss) After Taxation 4,310,377,380
FINANCIAL DATA
Shareholders equity 8,308,047,637
Long Term Liabilities 4.743,782,747
Deferred liabilities 1,198,268,756
Current Liabilities 6,692,355,096

20,942,454,236
Fixed Assets 10,011,202,510
Long term Deposit 19,323,290
Current assets 10,911,928,436

20,942,454,236
KEY RATIOS
Gross Profit 27.94%
Operating margin 24.81%
Net Profit 21.58%
Current Ratio 163
Earning per share ( Rupees) 699.40
Break up value of shares (Rupees) 1,348.05
Cash dividend % 1000%
STATISTICS
Spindles Installed 91,782
Spindles worked 87,742
Production capacity 20/s in kgs 42,257,781

Actual Production Conversion 20/s kgs 39,968,903

2021

11,484,466,704

9,030,179,730

2,454,286,974

2,069,720,237

565,788,183

1,503,932,054

1,386,258,794

3,372,572,329

4,309,884,273

976,906,148

4,596,957,050

13,256,319,800

6,788,402,075

2,768,255

6,465,149,470

13,256,319,800

21.37%

18.02%

12.07%

141

224.93

54723

500%

85,538

81,348

33,349,596

31,432,443

2020

8,771,413,766

7,546,976,748

1,224,437,018

923,344,117

653,176,821

270,167,296

181,451,855

2,050,330,119

2,366,168,168

311,423,425

4,827,264,420

9,555,186,132

4,207,779,137

2,149,100

5,345,257,895

9,555,186,132

13.96%

10.53%

207%

111

29.44

332.68

80%

81,660

69,778

33,620,034

28,728,098

2019

8,492,199,066

7,288,305,043

1,203,894,023

892,994,355

361,655,155

531,339,200

461,655,474

2,128,901,862

1,586,434,250

261,720,432

3,888,638,541

7,865,695,085

3,312,870,055

1,999,100

4,550,825,930

7,865,695,085

1418%

10.51%

S.44%

117

74.91

345.43

225.00%

75,540

68,814

28,966,403

25,457,634

2018

6,431,373,187

,714,212,560

717,160,627

517,631,815

189,992,426

327,639,389

345,351,085

1,819,827,934

1,403,775,478

8,135,162

2,435,987,851

5,667,726,425

2,791,194,470

1,999,100

2,874,532,855

5,667,726,425

1115%

8.05%

5.37%

118

56.04

295.28

225.00%

73,308

69,291

25,656,625

24,865,547

2017

5,413151,340

4,86LLCENES

548,345,275

385,470,596

178,548,310

206,922,286

175,596,687

1,555,593,911

805,266,207

31,428,869

2,472,733116

4,865,022,103

2,113,732,135

1,504,100

2,749,785,868

4,865,022,103

10.13%

712%

324%

i1

28.49

25241

125.00%

77,628

68,215

26,507,906

20,391,993



COMPANY
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PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDING

As at June 30, 2022

No. of Shareholdings Total
Shareholders Shares Held
490 1 - 100 36,400
96 101 - 500 29,802
36 501 - 1000 31,436
54 1001 - 5000 140,872
16 5001 - 10000 128,460
5 10001 - 15000 61,040
3 15001 - 20000 55,886
3 20001 - 25000 67,800
2 35001 - 40000 74,400
1 45001 - 50000 50,000
1 50001 - 55000 51,800
1 70001 - 75000 74,010
1 95001 - 100000 100,000
1 100001 - 105000 100,400
5 110001 - 115000 553,500
1 120001 - 125000 121,858
1 130001 - 135000 134,600
1 240001 - 245000 240,523
1 280001 - 285000 284,075
1 400001 - 405000 404,250
1 615001 - 620000 615,623
1 2805001 - 2810000 2,806,265

722 6,163,000




CLASSIFICATION OF SHARES

BY CATEGORIES

As at June 30, 2022

Shareholders' Category Shares Held

BANKS DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, NON BANKING FINANCIAL

INSTITUTIONS
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN

DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, THEIR SPOUSES, MINOR CHILDREN

AND RELATIVES

MR. MUHAMMAD ASLAM PAREKH - CHAIRMAN
MR. ABDUL KADER HAJI ADAM - CHIEF EXECUTIVE

MR. MOHAMMAD YASIN SIDDIK - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

MR. MOHAMMAD ALI AKBANI - DIRECTOR
MR. TUFAIL SATTAR - DIRECTOR

MRS. NABILA YASIN - W/O. YASIN SIDDIK
MR. ZAID YASIN - S/O. YASIN SIDDIK

MS. SAADIA YASIN - D/O. YASIN SIDDIK
MST. RAZIA

MST. NEELUM SIDDIQ

MST. FARHEEN SIDDIQ

MST. LUBNA SIDDIQ

MST. MUNEZA SIDDIQ

Sub - Total:

NIT AND ICP

CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESMENT (UNIT)
INVESTMENT CORP. OF PAKISTAN

OTHERS

TRUSTEES OF ABDUL KADIR ADAM BENEFICIARY
RAHMAT INVESMENT COMPANY (PVT) LTD
TRUSTEES OF NABILA AND ABDUL KADIR ADAM
TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP P F
YOUSUF YAQOOB KOLIA & COMPANY (PVT) LTD
AL HAYY TRADING (PVT.) LIMITED

CDC - TRUSTEE GOLDEN ARROW STOCK FUND
PREMIER FESHONS (PVT.) LTD

CDC - TRUSTEE AKD OPPORTUNITY FUND

SIZA (Private) Limited

ABDUL KADIR ADAM BENEFICIARY TRUST
TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BE FUND
PAKISTAN MEMON EDUCATIONAL & WELFARE SOC
FREEDOM ENTERPRISES (PVT) LTD

MUHAMMAD AHMAD NADEEM SEC (SMC-PVT) LTD.
FIKREE'S (SMC-PVT) LTD.

MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED

INDIVIDUAL

Local - Individuals

455
Sub - Total: 455

12,700
19,386
296,075
3,000
3,000

121,858
17,400
10,000
110,700
110,700
110,700
110,700
110,700
1,036,919

615,623
500
Sub - Total: 616,123

2,806,265
404,250
240,523

74,010
35,400
24,000
23,400
18,200
10,000
6,500
5,000
2,597
2,000
1,000
500
381
1
Sub - Total: 3,654,027

855,476
Sub - Total: 855,476
Grand Total: 6,163,000

0.01%

17.35%

11.80%

59.20%

11.64%

100.00%



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S
REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Premium Textile Mills

’ Russell Bedford Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Raflg Dot W Seamasxcus -

L CHARTFRED ACCDUMTANTS  Tok No i) MBsEbisg

INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To ibe members of M. Presium Textile Milks Limited

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
mmmm:mmnmmumnmmmmi

We bave reviewsd the eaclosed Statemens of Compliance with the Lisied Companies (Coda of Corporas
ﬂ:wmuh:}ﬂmllﬁmuﬂﬁ ['the Regulations’) preparsd by the Boand of Direciors ol Preminm
Textile Mills Limited {"the Compsy™) for the yeor ended June 30, 20IT in accordence Wity the
requizemsents of regelation 36 of the Regulasions.

mmﬁmmmmwamunm&mamm.
Cur responsibility i 1o review wheaher the Stxtemers of Compliance reflects the satus of the Company’s
Wﬂmwmﬁﬁ:wwmﬁimm!ﬂhﬂp}mmm
mhﬁhWﬂhWﬂWhﬁnHmuﬁrhquﬂtﬂw
Compasy's personmel and revigw of vasiows documents peeparsd by the Company o comply with the
Begaladons.

Al 4 af our sudit of the fingncial sssmecients we are required to oblain an undersmnding of the
mﬁ?ul;-wmmmf&mm?hhlﬂdmuupmﬂhﬂnm
approach, W:nﬂmkdhﬂnﬁdﬂtﬁnhﬁhﬂtﬂdm‘mmhmﬂqmﬂ
eovery all risks sd controls of T form a0 opiaion on the cffectveness of such iaternal comtrois, the
Company's corpoeats govemanee proceduneg aod risks.

mmmucmumumummmmmﬂ
the Audt Committee, place before the Beard of Directors for thelr mview and approval, it redased pasty
trensactions, We ars only requined and bave ensared compliance of this requirement W0 e extect of te
approval of the relared pasty rasactions by the Boand of Disesiors apon resommendation of the Aadd
Cenmition

Based on our review, nothing has come to ower atesedon which causes us 1o belizve tha i Soemenl of
Compliance does not appmoprintely refloct the Company’s complience. in all material respect, with tw
reguisemenry consdned in the Regulaticas x5 aplicabie o the Cosnpany far the year snded Jane 30, 2021,

- W%M

Chartersd Acconstanis

Diate: October 4, 2672
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

With the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 for the Year ended As of June 30, 2019

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

M/s. Premium Textile Mills Limited (the Company’) has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019, (‘the Regulations’) in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors of the Company are 7 as follows:

Male: 06
Female: O1

2.The composition of the Board of Directors (the Board) is as follows:

1) Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Mohammad Tufail Sattar;
a. Independent Directors Mr. Mohammad Ali Jaliawala; and
Ms. Lubna Asif

b.Other Non-Executive Directors Mr. Mohammad Aslam; and
Mr. Tanzeel Abdul Sattar

Mr. Abdul Kader Haji Adam; and

II) Executive Directors Mr. Mohammad Yasin Siddik

3.The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven (7) listed

companies including the Company;

4 The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5.The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. The Board has ensured that a complete record of particulars of significant policies along with
their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and the
Regulations;

7.The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman, and in his absence, by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board;

8.The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedure for remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2017 and the Regulations;

9.Up to the end of the reporting period (i.e. June 30, 2022), the Board has arranged Directors’ Training Program
for the following directors:



7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and the
Regulations;

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman, and in his absence, by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 and the

Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board;

9. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedure for remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2017 and the Regulations;

9.Up to the end of the reporting period (i.e. June 30, 2022), the Board has arranged Directors’ Training Program
for the following directors:

Details of the certification

Name of the director

Date of certification Name of the institute
Mr. Abdul Kader Haji Adam Qualifies the requisite criteria for exemption
Mr. Mohammad Yasin Siddik Qualifies the requisite criteria for exemption

Mr. Mohammad Aslam Qualifies the requisite criteria for exemption

Mr. Mohammad Tufail Sattar Qualifies the requisite criteria for exemption

Mr. Mohammad Ali Jaliawala Qualifies the requisite criteria for exemption

Training was completed in Sept 2022

Ms.Lubna Asif IBA

Mr. Tanzeel Abdul Sattar The training is yet to be acquired
10.The Board has approved the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of

Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations;

11.The Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

12.The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Mr. Mohammad Tufail Sattar Chairman
Mr. Mohammad Ali Jaliawala Member
Ms. Lubna Asif Member

HR & Remuneration Committee
Mr. Mohammad Ali Jaliawala Chairman
Mr. Mohammad Tufail Sattar Member

Ms. Lubna Asif Member



13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented, and advised to the
committees for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees was as follows:

Audit Committee Quarterly
HR & Remuneration Committee Annually

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function that is considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

16 . The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and
registered with the Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that
they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not ca close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit,
Company Secretary or a director of the Company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017, the Regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations no. 3, 6,7, 8,19, 27, 32, 33, and 36 of the Regulations have

been complied with,

19.There has been no non-compliance with the requirements of non-mandatory provisions of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

On behalf of the Board of Directors.

4 L_, o

Mr. Abdul Kadir Adam Mr. Yasin Siddik
Chief Executive Executive Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements as at June 30, 2022

@ HumelLi&dfurd Rabhman Sarfaraz Rakim Igbal Rafig Fack e 140 B, 118
Fou s FLLT0. PRIGETAN,
CHARTEREDN ACCEILINTA? T
NTANTS f,-.'.."‘_“‘”“;":“
mm“m
AP SHcpg
Lefors - Raws pingd ) i dbarnaneg

INDEFENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
To the members of Préemium Textlle Mils Limited
Report on the Aadit of the Finercks) Sratements

Opimion

W have audited the ansened financial sttements of Premium Texrile Mills Limited (“the Con
mmmﬁmﬁ_ﬁmnmmumu-:muzn,:azlmmmnufmmmm
the smremant of comprehensive income, the stalement of changes & aquity, the SMement of cish Aows
for the year them ended, and actes @ the francial Malemens, beluding & summary ol zhgn et
scounting policies and other explanatory informarion (*the finascial statemencs’), and we state thar we
Feve abtined sll the ieformation and explarstions which, 1o the bet of our krowiadge and belief, wese
mecsgsany for the purposss of the awsdiy,

In gur opinion. and b the best of cur information asd scoording o the explanations given w0 U, the
sabement of financial Whmwrﬂwﬁ!whﬁ.hm:#mmﬁwhmh
wmtement of changes In equlty and the staement of cash fows together with the notes foaming past
thersof coaform with the accourtiag and reporting standasdy as applicable in Pakbmae, and give the
fnforrmatioa rfqnnﬂb}'ﬂ': Companies Act, 3007 (KIX af 2007}, in the menoer 5o required and
respectively give & trae and fair view of the state of the Company's 8™l as ot Tune 30, 2022 and o the
protit and other comprebstisive income, the changes in equity end its cash flows For the verr thes ended,

Basis for Opinion

We condocted our audin in accoedener with [nemational Stendapds o8 Audit {15As} a2 applicable in
lemummmm“maﬁﬂaﬂhmﬂmmr
Respordibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements secrion of our report. We as¢ indepencent of
the Company in scsordance with the Inceratiosal Ethics Standerds Boaed for Accourmps’ Code of
F@HMWMWMBHWMMMMuEMAWHmJ
Institure of Cogt and Managemem Accountants (“the Code™) and we have fulfilled our poher edhical
responsibiliies (B eccordancs with the Code. W beliews thit the audit evidesce we have obiined s
sufficient and approprizte to provice & basls for sie apinion,

Ky Audit Matter(s)

Ky audit matiers are thoge masters that, in our professional judgmens, were of mast significance in oar
wadit of the financial stavements of the curront perind. These mamers were addressed in the comext of og:
it Hm:‘fhmm sarerments 25 2 whele. and in forming our opinion therson, and we do pot provide =
separule opinion an these mageds.

W

Coni'd... P2

B L
Russell Bedford International
& bl s of lepde soosmmnasy S,
Tainn g aularar 2od apeialen st sdvisas
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Following iz the Key Audit Maiter:

__ Key audit mmffer Haw the matter was s in oar andit
Assets obtained under long term flnancing Owudi:pmmluwld:!ﬂuHHmHmhdﬁ.
arrapgement et weere ot limited to; the following:

Az diszlosed in note 42 1o the Rnancial
mmmmmmwm
expenditures om varicus new cagital projects
acounting, in sggregue. to Rz 2,137 millios.
Cost of projecs completed during the vear
mhwwhmm[ﬂmm
tresfermed to opersting ' fixed essets Soch
expenditures  wers mainly Fsasced  through
locig-term.  financing faclliies cbhesined from
commercisl banks under the SBP's Temporary
Economit Refinance Facility (TERF), Ilamic
TERF (TTERF) and Faancing Scheme for
Rerewable Energy [refier note 14 o the financial
zamements). The significant incresse represents
expansion of existiag manufacturing facilities
during the year, a3 well s copstruction. of 2 soeks
manefectiring unit under diversifoawon plan of
s management.

We considersd thin mater o be of mon
slptﬁ:muhnpnsmﬁmﬂumuu-ufﬁ:
ammounts invalved a8 wall 2= the fact that s

recogaition. messuremest, presentation  ead
desciopare in th nanciel steiements reguined the
application of signiflesnt management jodgmesn
which. in mm. required us 1o epply significant
zaditors’ judgment aad. accordingly, devote
sufficher tme and resources, Iaﬁuﬂ:n; the |
imvolvement  of genior  engagement
nmhm.‘hwd.:rm&hmulﬁ:mwupdut
audl evidence.

Inspesting necessary documentary evidence
o verify the occurence and accuracy of the
loan procesds recelved fom commernial
backs. and comesponding  expenditure
incurred o imgnrt of mashinenys

Evaluating the management's conchusion &
o why assets impomed under the scheme
were not regarded as Cguelifving assets’
indar the spolicable Snancial repiting
sundsrd, and, sccordingly, ne

ﬁbﬁﬁmﬁhurﬂh&dmlﬁ&mﬂm

factors  and  sseumptions used by
mndmmfmtﬁnmm
cxed m caieulate the vahwe of

gant fioment embedded in ihe loax lichiliny,

Eﬂrm;mnaabhzmhﬂu

wierment of govermment grest which, a2 per tha
mpplseable fnaccial repordan sasdasd, should
Inksially be recognized &a defiermed income {la
it staiement of financial posiion) med |
subsenmently orafied 1 profit or los of the |
periods in which the related costs & o be

“tbogmized; und

Recaleulating the camying smount of loan
mumﬁﬁdﬁnﬂmmmﬁ.
statement of financlal poshisn [with thelr |
comesponding effects recogrized in the |
statement of profit of losf) as well as
assessing the adoquacy of thelr poesentation
__and disclosure.

FL:

L
Ruszell Bediord International
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Information Other than the Finaseial Stafements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Managemest is responsible fmmminhmmmqﬂ#hﬁnnﬂmnhhﬁ.uﬂumurmh.
aucitor's. report s informaticn Included [n the directors® repot, bul dees not inclede the Fnaccial
sements of the company and cur auditor's repor: thereon.

Our opinice nuuufhmhimdmmmuumim‘hm:iuﬂ and we do nat express any
form of wscurance conclusion therson.

I based on the work we have performed, on other information sbained prior 1o the dare of this suditer’s
report, we conclhede “that thers f5 a Mﬂmmndﬁwnmhnm“mnqum ta
seport that fact. We have nothing o report in this regard.

Responsibitities of Managemnent and Board of Direetors for the Finanelal Statements

mwhmiﬁmmFmeMMMdmwnﬁth
mmw-umwmnmuﬁuwmuwmmm“mﬂ
Compazics Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for sush interna] coctol a mansgement determizes is
mm;mmdumﬂﬁmh!mmnudmmﬁuﬁmmhﬁlﬂhhmm
s biether due tp frod o errar,

Ir. preparing the financial stawements, Mamdgemeant is responsible for assessing the Compamy's abilize 1o
continue &2 8 going soncerm, disclos: ﬁqlbﬂﬂhmmmwtﬁﬂgm-mlﬂhﬁh
mh:mﬁ:#lmmmmmaqmﬁqmﬂh&m;wmm
operations, or ki no realistie alternative but 1 &5 50,

Board of Directors ere responsibile for oversesing the Company's financial reporting procEss.
Auditors' Respoasibilities for the Awdit of the Finaneial Staterments

miissiatrmen: whes & exists, Hhﬂmnﬂumﬁﬂﬁmfndwmudmmﬂm material if,
hﬁkﬁlﬂrwinm-mﬂ'ﬁmﬂ reastaably be expected to influence the pconomic decisions
of ugers taken on the basts of these financial statements.

b

Cont'd.. P
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Russell Badford International
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Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staternents {continned)

As pact of an audit in sccordance with 15As as applicable In Pakistan, we cxerche professional fudgmen:
and maintain professional scepticism throughour the audit. We also;

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or emor, design and perform audit procsdures faponsive to those risks, asd sbtaln seds
ﬁiﬂﬁuﬂﬁtkﬂfﬁﬂiﬁﬂbﬂgﬁ@pﬁﬂ:tﬂgﬂ%ami&fwmnp[ﬂm.T‘Prtﬁskﬂ-fmﬁdﬂﬂing
& material misstaterent resaliing from fraod is higher than for one resulting from error; as frand may
invelve collusion, forgery, intntional omissions, missepeesentations, or the override of intemal
control.

®  Dbtain an undesstanding of interal control relevan: to the sudit in order to-design sudit procedures

thet ure appropeiate in the circumstances. but not for the parpose of expressing an opinicn on the
effectiveness of the Company”s imternal control.

* Evaluaste the aporopristeness of secsanting policies ased and the reasonableness of sccounting
estimates and reloed disclosures made by management,

. Camlu&mhwiwﬁmmﬂwfsmnfhmmmhjmfmﬁqm
based on the sudit evidence obtzined, whether 3 materia] uncerming exists related fo events or
conditions that may cast significant doube on the Company’s ability 1o contisee &5 & going sonserm. If
we ganclude that a material uncertainfy exists, we ase regulred 1o draw attention i our auditoes
repoct (o the related disclosures in the financial statsments or, i such disclosures are inadequase, &
modidy gur opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the sudit evidense obtained up o the date of our
suditor’s report. However, funare events or conditions may causs the Company to ceass fo coutinue
48 A Boing conosm.

*  Svaluate the overnll prescouaion, seructure and sontent of the financial statemenss, including the
disclosures, snd whether the financial sticements represent the undeclying rensactions and evenss in
& manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regerding, among other masters, the plansed scope and
timing of the audit and sigaificant sudit findirgs, including any significent deficiencies in Insernal conmral

We alsa provide the: Board of Disectors with = stasemert thar we have complied with mlevant ethical
requirements régarding icdependence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other metters
thit may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where spplicabis, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directocs, we determine those maners that wese of
mest significance in the audit of the financial starermiens of the current period, aad ars therefore, the key
mudit marmers. We describe these maners in our auditos’s report unless luw or regulation preciudes public
disclogure abour the mamer o when, in extremely rare circumstances, we desecmine that @ matter should
not be communicased in our report because the sdverse consequences of doing so would ressorably be
expected tn cutweigh the pobiic interest benefits of sisch communization;

i

Lt i
Russell Badferd International

A il acteral o il scosurtngy i,
botinew oes vty Ll spamak WL Ak ama
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Report on Other Legal udl.mphw Requirements
EBased on our audit, we further report that in sur opinioa:

&) proper hooks of sccoint have bﬂﬂﬂptwhw-r:quhﬂh}-ﬂmﬂumpumﬁﬂ,
2007 (XIX of 2007%

b) the statement of financial position, the swtemens of profit or loss, the siatement of comprehenzive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX af 2017)
and are in agresment with the books of sccount and returs;

o) invesiments made, expenditure incurred and guarantess extended during the vear were fir the
purpose of the Company’s butiness

€) Zakat deductible af source under the Zakat and Ushe O-dinance, 1980 (XVII of 1980}, was

deducted by the company and deposited in the Contral Zaket Fund established under seetion 7 of
that Crdinance: snd

The engagement partner on the andit resultiag o this mdependent auditor’s report i3 Mre. Mubammad
Raflg Desant,

W2 im0 o

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: October 4, 2022
UDIN: AR2022102104iWaBETd8

A o bt ol

Russell Bedford International
& ghoba etaral 37 isdopoadens sisimminy o,
baiirem our e ead apactiln lepal sdvsarn
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Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2022

ASSETS

Non- current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Long term advances and deposits

Current assets

Stores and spares

Stock in trade

Trade debts - net

Taxation-net

Advances, deposits and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorized capital
7,000,000 (2021: 7,000,000) ordinary shares
of' Rs. 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Capital reserve
Surplus on revaluation of plant and electrical instruments

Revenue reserve
Unappropriated profits
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Long term financing - secured
Deferred liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Accrued markup

Short term borrowings - secured
Current maturity of long term financing

Contingencies and commitments
Total equity and liabilities

Note

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

14

19

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

e

Chief Executive Officer
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Director

2022 2021
Rupees
10,011,202,510 6,791,611,961
19,323,290 18,318,255
10,030,525,800 6,809,930,216
208,821,081 175,261,221
5,689,599,588 3,665,535,551
4,466,962,934 2,199,212,480
121,503,904 159,768,633
138,880,056 152,661,157
286,160,873 93,950,542
10,911,928,436 6,446,389,584
20,942,454,236 13,256,319,800
70,000,000 70,000,000
61,630,000 61,630,000
1,246,126,234 2,953,067
7,000,291,403 3,307,989,262

8,308,047,637 3,372,572,329
4,743,782,747 4,309,884,273
1,198,268,756 976,906,148
5,942,051,503 5,286,790,421
1,217,162,511 945,328,902
9,795,974 7,084,759
149,164,863 96,507,924
4,745,077,327 3,097,913,612
571,154,421 450,121,853
6,692,355,096 4,596,957,050
20,942,454,236 13,256,319,800

V2

&

-~

Chief Financial Officer




Premium Textile Mills Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Sales - net
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Distribution costs
Operating profit

Finance costs

Other operating expenses
Other income / (expenses) - net

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Note

20
21

22
23

24
25
26

27

28

2022 2021
Rupees
19,976,813,131 11,484,466,704
(14,394,726,682) (9,030,179,730)
5,582,086,449 2,454,286,974
(311,318,399) (189,110,439)
(314,595,712) (195,456,298)
(625,914,111) (384,566,737)
4,956,172,338 2,069,720,237
(875,804,470) (597,432,888)
(341,628,530) (111,462,204)
870,770,250 143,106,909
(346,662,750) (565,788,183)
4,609,509,588 1,503,932,054
(299,132,208) (117,673,260)
4,310,377,380 1,386,258,794
699.40 224.93

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer
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Premium Textile Mills Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2022

2022 2021
—Rupees —
Profit after taxation 4,310,377,380 1,386,258,794
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
statement of profit or loss
Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligation (2,582,072) (14,712,584)
Revaluation increase during the year 1,243,980,000 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,551,775,308 1,371,546,210

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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Premium Textile Mills Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Balance as at June 30, 2020

Total comprehensive income for the
year ended June 30,2021

- Profit after taxation
- Other comprehensive loss

Transfer to unapproppriated profits on
account of incremental depreciation

Transactions with owners

Final cash dividend paid @ 80% for the
year ended June 30, 2020 (2019: 225%)

Balance as at June 30, 2021

Total comprehensive income for the
vear ended June 30,2022

- Profit after taxation
- Other comprehensive (loss) / income

Transfer to unapproppriated profit on
account of incremental depreciation

Revaluation surplus realized on disposal
of fixed assets

Transactions with owners

Final cash dividend paid @ 500% for the
year ended June 30, 2021 (2020: 80%)

Interim cash dividend paid @ 500%

Balance as at June 30, 2022

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer
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Revenue reserve Capital
reserve
Issued, Unappropriated S“:P"t"s " f
subscribed and pprop revaluation o Total
. . profits plant and
paid up capital .
equipment
Rupees
61,630,000 1,985,418,933 3,281,186 2,050,330,119
- 1,386,258,794 - 1,386,258,794
- (14,712,584) - (14,712,584)
- 1,371,546,210 - 1,371,546,210
- 328,119 (328,119) -
- (49,304,000) - (49,304,000)
61,630,000 3,307,989,262 2,953,067 3,372,572,329
- 4,310,377,380 - 4,310,377,380
- (2,582,072) 1,243,980,000 1,241,397,928
- 4,307,795,308 1,243,980,000 5,551,775,308
- 568,362 (568,362) -
- 238,471 (238,471) -
- (308,150,000) - (308,150,000)
- (308,150,000) - (308,150,000)
- (616,300,000) - (616,300,000)
61,630,000 7,000,291,403 1,246,126,234 8,308,047,637
&
i
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Premium Textile Mills Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non cash and other items:
- Depreciation
- Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
- Gain on re-measurement of provision for GIDC
- Provision for staff retirement benefits
- (Reversal) / provision of expected credit losses
- Amortization of deferred government grant
- Provision for gas rate difference
- Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund
- Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund
- Unrealized exchange gain
- Finance costs

Cash generated from operating activities before
working capital changes

Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
- Stores and spares
- Stock in trade
- Trade debts
- Advances, deposits and other receivables
- Sales tax refundable / payable

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
- Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
- Taxes paid
- Taxes refund
- Staff retirement benefits
- Payment of Workers' Profit Participation Fund
- Payment of Workers' Welfare Fund
- Finance cost paid
- Long term advances and deposits - net
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
- Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

- Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

- Repayment of Long term financing (principal portion)

- Long term financing obtained
- Short term borrroiwngs - net
- Dividend paid
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

M‘_—'

Chief Executive Officer
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Note

9.1
9.1

29

2022 2021
Rupees
4,609,509,588 1,503,932,054
713,684,075 529,473,690
(13,114,024) (10,004,329)
(127,509,447) (96.481,874)
93,920,327 25,575,178
(14,397,108) 15,920,095
(102,951,929) (45.119,260)
- 8,166,725
247,556,906 80,769,713
94,071,624 30,692,491
(37,190,354) (1,598,434)
875,804,470 597,432,888
1,729,874,540 1,134,826,883
6,339,384,128 2,638,758,937
(33,559,860) (58.642,200)
(2,024,064,037) (472,232,881)
(2,244,562,102) (421,484,230)
13,781,101 (102,145,366)
(51,234,405) -
48,619,318 128,113,373
(4,291,019,985) (926,391,304)
2,048,364,143 1,712,367,633
(203,630,163) (134,306,889)
14,569,727 -
(14,544,587) (22,105,147)
(97,366,229) (17.174,606)
(37,644,526) -
(680,380,699) (549,360,725)
(1,005,035) (619,155)
1,028,362,631 988.801,111
(2,707,526,244) (3,132,150,890)
31,345,644 32,060,000
(2,676,180,600) (3,100,090,890)
(399,898,379) (103,454,866)
1,177,952,639 2,876,597,805
510,213,703 299,997,748
(613,588,785) (49.045,617)
674,679,178 3,024,095,070
(973,138,791) 912,805,291
(2,703,965,322) (3,616,770,613)
28,399,110 -
(3,648,705,003) (2,703,965,322)

L
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1.1

1.2

2.1

22

23

24

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Premium Textile Mills Limited ('the Company') is a public listed company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (which has now been repealed by Companies Act, 2017). The shares of the Company are quoted on
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of cotton and polyester
yarn, and from next year, the Company's plan is to manufacture and sell socks under Company's diversification plan.

The geographical location of Company's offices are as follows:

- Karachi Head office Ist Floor, Haji Adam Chamber, Altaf Hussain Road, New Challi, Karachi
(Registered office)
- Nooriabad Factory Plot 58,60,61 and 76,77,78, Nooriabad, District Daddu, Sindh

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of, and directives issued under, the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of, and directives issued under, the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

In these financial statements, all items have been measured at their historical cost, except for plant and machinery and
electrical instruments and installations which are carried at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss thereon if any.

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company’s functional

and presentation currency.

Judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the application of the

Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively.

(a) Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognised in these financial statements is included in the following notes:

60 | Premium Textile Mills Limited



2.5
2.5.1

252

Avea of judgement Bried description of the [udgement appHed

Whether the consanption of fulure sconomic benefits embodied i the Compant™s fined
nsssts ® reduced over ame and, accordingly, whethsr f of appropambe i use ‘dmnnhsg
bakince method' as the depreciation method

Property, plant snd
i B

Lacal Siles revemir:

Whisther control of the promised poods b trenefemed 10 B customer whes the poods

are dispatched from the Company's pramises

Timimg of revemue
recoguiiion Export zales revenine:

Whether comirel of the promised goods & trinsfered (o the customer when the poods

mre bpadsd onto the shipping vesssl and, a3 an nckoow Bdgament thersof, a bill of ading

& woued by the shippisg company

Fisencing for pavmenl of
wages and salaties / TERF {Whether the feancing commins as elment of povernment gmat shat should be

{ Renenable rueagy | mecognrad separalely as deferred oome
ITERF

(b) Assumptions and other major sources of estimation uncertainty

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial year is included
in the following notes:

Area of estimation

uncertainty Brief description of the assumption or the source of estimation uncertainty

Pmp'"?-' 'h.,I et |Extimation of ussfiol ives and residual vakees of the operating frued azsets
g ipment | T

|

{Estimation of the net nealizable valie of stores and spares Eventony aad recognition of|

AT ARATET- |, nscviion for slow -moving Hems

New accounting pronouncements

Amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations which became effective during the year ended June
30, 2022.

During the year, certain new accounting and reporting standards / amendments / interpretations became effective and
applicable to the Company. However, since such updates were not considered to be relevant to these financial statements,
the same have not been reported.

New / revised accounting standards, amendments to published accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet
effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017
and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after the dates
specified below:

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that the 'cost of fulfilling a contract' for the purposes of the onerous contract
assessment comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract, including both the incremental costs and an
allocation of other direct costs to fulfil the contract. An entity is required to apply the amendments to contracts for
which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies
the amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead the
amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial
application. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.
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- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds and costs of items produced while bringing an item
of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management e.g. when testing etc., are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable
Standards. The entity measures the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements of IAS 2. The standard
also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those
amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period
presented. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.

- Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the Conceptual Framework, issued in May 2020,
amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and added paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A to IFRS 3. An entity
shall apply those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 01, 2022. Earlier application is permitted if at the same
time or earlier an entity also applies all the amendments made by Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards, issued in March 2018. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements
of the Company.

- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
amendments apply retrospectively for the annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023. These amendments
in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends
the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the
reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall
apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8. The management of the Company is currently in
the process of assessing the impacts of these amendments on the financial statements.

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) — the Board has issued
amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and to help companies provide
useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

a. requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies;

b. clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are themselves
immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

c. clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are
themselves material to a company’s financial statements.

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples on the
application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2023 with earlier application permitted.

The management of the Company is currently in the process of assessing the impacts of above amendments on the
financial statements.

- Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) — The amendments introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that
a company develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments
are effective for periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023, and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in
which the company applies the amendments. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the
Company.
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- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12) — The
amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply to transactions that
give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will need to recognise a deferred tax
asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and a
decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and liabilities
will need to be recognised from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at that date. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023 with earlier application permitted. The
amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28) — The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also
introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained
interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the
completion of a broader review.

- The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after January 01, 2022.

- IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the
borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf,
when it applies the “10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a
financial liability.

- IFRS 16 — The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by excluding the
illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to
resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives.

- IAS 41 — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation
cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique This amendment
enables the fair value measurement of biological assets on a post-tax basis.

The above amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. The
accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented.

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, except for plant and machinery and
electrical instruments and installations which are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during
the year in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which the
asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment is charged using reducing balance method in accordance with the rates
specified in note 4.1 to these financial statements. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, At each reporting date. The Company's estimate of residual value of property, plant and
equipment as at June 30, 2020 did not require any adjustment. Depreciation on additions is charged from the date when the
assets become available for use till the date of disposal.
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33

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of plant and machinery and electrical instruments and installations is
recognised in other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as “Surplus on revaluation of
plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in
profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any
decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, held in the surplus on revaluation relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. The revaluation reserve is not
available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders. The surplus on revaluation to the extent of incremental
depreciation charged is transferred to unappropriated profit.

Gains / losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are charged to the statement of profit or loss.
Capital work - in - progress
Capital work - in - progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditures connected to the

specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work - in - progress. These are
transferred to operating assets as and when the assets are available for use.

Stores and spares

These are valued under the moving average cost method (less impairment loss if any) other than stores and spares in transit
which are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon less impairment loss if any.

Provisions are made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving inventory based on management's best
estimate regarding their future usability.

Stock-in-trade

Basis of valuation

All items of stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and their net realizable value as of the reporting date.

Determination of cost

The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling and other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of finished goods, materials and services. Trade discounts and other similar items are
deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the quantity of production, such as direct labour.
They also include a systematic allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are incurred in converting
materials into finished goods. The allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion is based on the
normal operating capacity of the production facilities (ounce per spindle method).

The cost of the items consumed or sold and those held in stock at the reporting date is determined as follows:

Teeun of stock fn trade Alenhesd of valuation
Baw masenals- 1o hand Wosighted KVerage okl
Raw materizl-In mansh At direceh snmibuzable coss
Packosyg materal Weighaed averaps okl
Wase material At net realizable valie
Waork-m-greceis and Erked poods e = u:: ;:‘m'fldn’ e Ee e

Determination of net realizable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories are
damaged, if they have become wholly or partially obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined. The cost of inventories
may also not be recoverable if the estimated costs of completion or the estimated costs to be incurred to make the sale have
increased.

The Company estimates the net realisable value of inventories based on the most reliable evidence available, at the
reporting date, of the amount the inventories are expected to realise. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of
price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the reporting period to the extent that such events confirm
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.
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3.6

3.6.1

Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the
finished product in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. However, when a decline in
the price of materials indicates that the cost of the finished product exceeds net realisable value, the materials are written
down to net realisable value. In such circumstances, the replacement cost of the materials is used as the measure of their net
realisable value.

Trade debts

These are carried at their transaction price less any allowance for lifetime expected credit losses. A receivable is recognized
when the goods are delivered to customers as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash in hand, bank balances and short term borrowings from banks which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Company's cash management.

Financial assets
Initial recognition, classification and measurement

The Company recognizes a financial asset when and only when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument evidencing investment. The Company classifies its financial assets into either of following three categories:

(a) financial assets measured at amortized cost.
(b) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
(c) fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows, and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue thereof.

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income when it is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and its
contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue thereof.

(c) Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income, as aforesaid. However, for an investment in equity instrument which is not
held for trading, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value of the investment

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value.

3.6.2 Subsequent measurement

(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (determined using the effective interest method) less
accumulated impairment losses.

Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses arising from such financial assets
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(b) Financial assets at FVOCI

These are subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses.

A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in accordance is
recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and
losses, until the financial asset is derecognised or reclassified. When the financial asset is derecognised the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment. Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in profit or loss.

(¢) Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Net gains or losses arising from remeasurement of such financial assets as well as any interest income accruing thereon
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. However, for an investment in equity instrument which is not held for
trading and for which the Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment, such gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income. Further, when such investment is disposed off, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is not reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Impairment

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses in respect of financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'Simplified Approach' to measuring expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance.

For other financial assets, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'General Approach' to measuring expected credit losses
whereby the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. However, if,
at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

The Company measures expected credit losses on financial assets trade receivables in a way that reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount, time value of money and reasonable and supportable information at the reporting date about
the past events, current conditions and forecast of future economic conditions. The Company recognises in profit or loss, as
an impairment loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date.
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3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

The Company directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle
either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle liability simultaneously.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or 'at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL). A
financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition
is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or have expired or when
the cash flows relating to the financial liability have been substantially modified.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Employee benefits
Staff retirement benefits

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity regularly pays contributions into a separate
fund but will continue to have legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. As a
consequence, actuarial risk (that benefits will be less than expected) and investment risk (that assets will be insufficient to
meet expected benefits) fall, in substance, on the entity.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees which is classified as a defined benefit plan.

The Company’s obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discounting that amount. The calculation of defined benefit
obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Remeasurements of the defined benefit liability (i.e. the actuarial gains or losses) are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income. The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by
applying the discount rate to the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual reporting period, taking into account
any changes in the defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Interest
expense and other expenses related to the defined benefit plan are recognised in profit or loss.
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When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past
service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Compensated absences

Provision for accumulating compensated absences, whether vesting or non-vesting, is recognized as the employees render
services that increase their entitlement to future paid absences to extent of maximum 34-38 days. Such provision is
measured as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the end of the reporting period. Leaves not availed by employees cannot be carried forward to next year.

Translation of foreign currency transactions and balances

On initial recognition, a foreign currency transaction is recognized, in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.

At the end of each reporting period, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate (i.e. the spot
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period).

At the end of each reporting period, non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. However, non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from
those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

To the extent that the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Company
determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that
borrowing during the period.

To the extent that the Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to all
borrowings of the Company that are outstanding during the period. However, the Company excludes from this calculation
borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset until
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

The Company begins capitalising borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset on the 'commencement date'
which is the date when the Company first meets all of the following conditions: (a) it incurs expenditures for the asset; (b)
it incurs borrowing costs; and (c) it undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.

The Company suspends capitalisation of borrowing costs during extended periods in which it suspends active development
of a qualifying asset.

The Company ceases capitalising borrowing costs when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are complete.
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3.13

3.14

3.15

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public
expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of
provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the
amount of previously recognised provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was
originally recognised as part of cost of an asset.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Revenue
Revenue from local sales

Revenue from sale of goods (yarn) is recegnized when the customer obtains control of the goods, being when the goods are
delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the selling price of the goods and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the goods. Delivery occurs when the goods have been dispatched
from the company premise, the risk of loss has been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the
goods in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have elapsed, or the Company has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to
the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

Revenue from export sales

Revenue from sale of goods to foreign customers is recognized when those customers obtain control of the exported goods
which is when the goods are loaded onto the shipping vessel and, as an acknowledgement thereof, a bill of lading is issued
by the shipping company.

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to
the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than inventories and
deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Cash Generating Units (CGUs).
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3.16

3.17

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use
is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in the
CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. A reversal of
impairment loss for a cash generating unit is allocated to the assets of the unit pro rata with the carrying amounts of those
assets. The increase in the carrying amounts shall be treated as reversals of impairment losses for individual assets and
recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is measured at revalued amount. Any reversal of impairment loss of a revalued
asset shall be treated as a revaluation increase.

Taxation

Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

The Company comes under Final Tax Regime, having revenue from direct and indirect exports of more than 90% of total
revenue. Accordingly, deferred tax is recognized only on export debtors, using the balance sheet liability method.

Judgment and estimates

Significant judgment is required in determining the income tax expenses and corresponding provision for tax. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain as these matters are being
contested at various legal forums. The Company recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Further, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the current
assessment of future taxable profits. If required, carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits to allow the benefit of part or all of that recognised deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Any such reduction shall be reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

2022 2021
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note Rupees
Operating fixed assets 4.1 7,985,418,970 5,999.819,308
Capital work in progress 4.2 2,025,783,540 791,792,653
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4.1.1

Depreciation for the year has been allocated as under :

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses

Dyeing and Shoudy departments

Note

214
22

2022 2021
Rupees
666,697,765 518,675,332
35,228,688 10,798,358
11,757,622 -
713,684,075 529,473,690

4.1.2 The following operating fixed assets with a net book value exceeding Rs. 500,000 were disposed off during the year.

4.2

Parirmar ad Armgssl Fask ks [tl" Pardnbin Reisticanith - Nlsde{N
O e Dyewiais Vil Pmomd Of Parries Bewr Dkl
Dipnd
g R
|i{‘.l.1|7|T:‘-i-"r:-,‘.'!i| AT ] Lo bl ek ) I |11 1] 137486 | ke ¥ Halyh Yaze ':"\q-clt'r.
[t T B E LA b1 | T L] SRR | MM S TR
[P B4 wathn] vt pwied e AMEAT | CeDedilermem) [N b
fageRipras | 1] enen|  esms] isemo] Ol bwertem  floe oo
et (0 ol ke M2 L 1503 R LR L1 REdnE | S0 541 557 Hmfs Todm Uompery [V (et
IS0 v Cone 210 L S BRI b g = L6 | Mheales Brathe b oo
Wt Come e LC-19060H EasE) A LM WeID|  (HETEN Abdd el Tades [N e lahay
| TRy 1.C- AT (30 ) REST | I s | Lo | s o] A e Tide [N erasam
M ST MM LLSENT  LiLEE LIs5Em
& | Wil SBpeow sl R DeeEI
Laocation | Usage af Immovable Properiy I;*::::\l'. :':.:". gﬂTwM:.
Bawe accomodation, Machinery halls,
Mooriabal Gensabte dodoma,; Admmmn & TEF OTies, 216624 IO DS
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1atest revaluaron oI plant ana macninery and €lectrical Istruments and Instalarions was carriea out by an inaepenaent

valuer M/s K.G.Traders (Pvt) Ltd on June 30, 2022.

Had there been no revaluation, the net carrying amount of plant and machinery and electrical instruments and installations
would have been Rs. 5,607 million (2021: Rs. 5,184 million).

As per the aforesaid valuation, the forced sale value of the plant and machinery and electrical instruments and installations

amounted to Rs. 1.057 million.

Capital work in progress

Opening balance
Additions:

- Machinery

- Civil works

- ERP Software under development

- Solar Renewable Energy

Transferred to operating fixed assets
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Note

36.3

2022 2021
Rupees

791,792,653 194,186,322

1,401,802,146 2,688,313,772
681,130,223 150,354,439
2,772,380 4,895,435
51,372,848 21,128,845

2,137,077,597 2,864,692,491
(903,086,710) (2,267,086,160)
2,025,783,540 791,792,653




Significant additions to CWIP during the year represent purchase of new imported machinery for the Company’s existing
plants, as well as machinery for a new “Socks Division” under management’s diversification plan. The new project is

estimated to be fully completed by the end of October 2022.

5. LONG TERM ADVANCES AND DEPOSITS Note Rupees
Advances - unsecured
- Against vehicles 36.3 16,555,035 15,550,000
Deposits
- Utilities 2,535,255 2,535,255
- Others 233,000 233,000
2,768,255 2,768,255
19,323,290 18,318,255
6. STORES AND SPARES
In hand 175,480,762 173,719,575
In transit 33,340,319 1,541,646
208,821,081 175,261,221
7. STOCK IN TRADE
Raw material
- In hand 21.1 4,473,661,596 2,841,951,125
- In transit 818,893,344 371,611,375
5,292,554,940 3,213,562,500
Work in process 21 140,141,739 91,552,737
Finished goods 219,738,944 339,202,063
Waste material 2,097,426 487,850
21 221,836,370 339,689,913
Packing materials 21.3 35,066,539 20,730,401
5,689,599,588 3,665,535,551
8. TRADE DEBTS - net
Local debtors - unsecured 8.1 4,037,091,157 2,032,239,397
Foreign debtors - secured 438,568,942 190,067,355
4,475,660,099 2,222,306,752
Less: Provision for expected credit losses 8.2 (8,697,165) (23,094,272)
4,466,962,934 2,199,212,480
8.1 This includes an amount receivable from M/s. Premium Knits (a related party) amounting to Rs. 263,790,117 as at June 30,

2022 (June 30, 2021: Rs. 423,655). The maximum aggregate amount outstanding during the year calculated by reference to
month-end balances was Rs. 263,790,117 (2021: Rs. 55,378,32). The aging analysis of receivable from related parties is as

follows:
2022 2021
Gross carrying Life time Gross carrying Life time
amount expected credit amount expected credit
Rupees
Not past due 57,630,456 - - -
Past due 1 to 30 days 41,444,582 - - -
Past due 31 to 60 days 86,768,944 4,338,447 - -
Past due 61 to 90 days 59,616,180 3,717,392 - -
Past due 91 to 150 days 18,329,955 - 423,655 21,183
263,790,117 8,055,839 423,655 21,183
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8.2

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

12.

12.1

Movement in provision for expected credit losses

Opening balance
Add: Charge for the year
Less: Reversal of provision during the year

TAXATION - net

Income tax refundable
Sales tax refundable

Income tax refundable

Opening balance
Provision for current tax
Taxes deducted at source
Tax refund during the year
Closing balance

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances - unsecured
- Staff
- Suppliers

Deposits
- Security deposits

Prepayments
- Insurance

Other receivables - unsecured
- Duty drawback receivable
- Claims receivable
- Other receivables

Note

22.
26.

9.1

27

36.3

10.1

These represent claim receivable from suppliers in respect of weight shortage and quality problems.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand
Cash with banks - current accounts

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

2022 2021

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/-
6,163,000 6,163,000 each fully paid in cash

There are no agreements among shareholders for voting rights, board selection,
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2022 2021
Rupees
23,094,273 7,174,178
- 15,920,095
(14,397,108) -
8,697,165 23,094,273
70,269,499 159,768,633
51,234,405 -
121,503,904 159,768,633
159,768,633 138,302,457
(278,559,570) (112,840,713)
203,630,163 134,306,889
(14,569,727) -
70,269,499 159,768,633
18,906,979 5,824,836
86,543,754 137,158,955
105,450,733 142,983,791
7,592,685 2,591,384
563,053 -
200,308 200,308
24,082,704 6,558,327
990,573 327,347
25,273,585 7,085,982
138,880,056 152,661,157
2022 2021
Rupees
1,929,981 2,353,103
284,230,892 91,597,439
286,160,873 93,950,542
61,630,000 61,630,000

rights of first refusal and block voting.




13.

14.

14.1

14.2

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF
PLANT AND ELECTRICAL INSTRUMENTS

Opening balance

Revaluation increase during the year

Realized on disposal of assets

Incremental depreciation charged during the year

LONG TERM Financing- secured

Bank Al-Habib Limited

- Long Term Finance Facility (LTFF)

- Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and salaries
- Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF)

- Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy

Bank Al-Falah Limited
- Long Term Finance Facility (LTFF)
- Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF)

Habib Bank Limited
- Long Term Finance Facility (LTFF)

Meezan Bank Limited
- Long Term Finance Facility (LTFF)
- Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF)

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
- Long Term Finance Facility (LTFF)

Askari Bank Limited
- Long Term Finance Facility (LTFF)

Current maturity shown under current liabilities
Non-current maturity shown under non-current liabilities

Note

14.1
14.2
14.3
14.4

14.5
14.6

14.7

14.8
14.9

14.10

14.11

2022 2021
Rupees
2,953,067 3,281,186
1,243,980,000 -
(238,471) -
(568,362) (328,119)
1,246,126,234 2,953,067
1,687,970,674 1,399,857,850
55,970,110 165,727,459
1,518,659,437 1,356,339,438
136,987,189 50,430,886
684,907,046 789,230,158
45,217,971 -
476,708,158 499,931,335
471,821,121 498,489,000
155,465,078 -
72,470,000 -
8,760,384 -
5,314,937,168 4,760,006,126
571,154,421 450,121,853
4,743,782,747 4,309,884,273
5,314,937,168 4,760,006,126

This represents long term finance facility (LTFF), under LTFF scheme of the State Bank of Pakistan, for import of
machineries, to be repaid within 10 years, starting subsequent to the 2 year moratorium, and expiring in September 203 1.
The loan is secured against registered hypothecation charge over all present and future Plant and Machinery for Rs.556
Million, 1st Equitable Mortgage charge over fixed assets on Plot # 60, 61, 76 and 77 spread over 16 acres at Nooriabad,
Sindh, and specific hypothecation charge over specific Machinery imported under this scheme, with 25% Margin. The rate

of mark-up is SBP refinance rate plus 1% per annum.

Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries

Opening carrying amount - net of deferred grant

Funds borrowed during the year:
Loan proceeds received from the bank

Less: Element of government grant recognized as deferred income

Interest recognized on unwinding of the liability
Loan installments paid during the year

Closing carrying amount - net of deferred grant

Current maturity shown under current liabilities
Non-current maturity shown under non-current liabilities
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2022 2021
Rupees
165,727,459 62,765,122
- 159,088,925
- (9,195,714)
- 149,893,211
8,497,962 15,247,309
(118,255,311) (62,178,183)
55,970,110 165,727,459
55,970,110 113,230,506
- 52,496,953
55,970,110 165,727,459




14.2.1 This represents SBP Refinance Wage Loan from M/s Bank Al-Habib Limited under the State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP)

14.3

14.3.1

Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries, to the Workers and Employees of Business Concerns notified vide
IH & SMEFD Circular No. 7 of 2020 dated April 10, 2020. The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as
follows:

(a) The applicable markup rate is 3% per annum; (2020: 3% per annum);

(b) The tenor of the each tranche of the facility is 2.5 years (including 6-month grace period commencing from the date of
disbursement of the funds); and

(c) Each tranche of the loan is to be repaid in 8 equal quarterly instalments.

Since the facility carries an interest rate of 3% p.a. which is well below the market interest rate prevailing as on the date of
disbursement of funds, therefore, in accordance with Circular 11 of 2020 dated August 17, 2020 issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), the financing is considered to contain an element of government grant as per
the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance (the standard). Accordingly, the Company measured the loan liability at its fair value (determined on a present
value basis) and recognized the difference between the disbursement proceeds received from the bank and the said fair
value, as deferred income in the statement of financial position., This deferred income is being shall be recognized as other
income in profit or loss in proportion to the recognition of interest cost on the outstanding loan balance (based on the
effective interest rate method).

2022 2021
Financing under Temporary Economic Refinance Rupees
Facility (TERF)
Opening carrying amount - net of deferred grant 1,356,339,438 -
Funds borrowed during the year:
Loan proceeds received from the bank 134,462,000 1,921,032,034
Less: Element of government grant recognized as deferred income (55,316,392) (603,234,940)
79,145,608 1,317,797,094
Interest recognized on unwinding of the liability 120,912,870 44,707,496
Loan installments paid during the year (37,738,479) (6,165,152)
Closing carrying amount - net of deferred grant 1,518,659,437 1,356,339,438
Current maturity shown under current liabilities 99,983,682 36,726,344
Non-current maturity shown under non-current liabilities 1,418,675,755 1,319,613,094
1,518,659,437 1,356,339,438

During the year, the Company obtained a long-term financing facility amounting to Rs. 134 million from M/s. Bank Al
Habib Limited (BAHL) under the SBP's scheme of Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) notified vide IH &
SMEFD Circular No. 01 of 2020 dated March 17, 2020. As at the reporting date, the facility available to the Company
under the Scheme amounted to Rs.1.2 billion.

The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows:
(a) The applicable markup rate is 2% per annum;

(b) The tenor of the each tranche of the facility is 10 years (including 2-year moratorium period, commencing from the
date of disbursement of the funds); and

(¢) Each tranche of the loan is to be repaid in 32 equal quarterly instalments.

(d) The facility is secured against hypothecation charge over all present and future plant and machinery for Rs.556
million, specific hypothecation charge over present and future plant and machinery imported / to be imported under
this facility and 1st equitable charge over fixed assets over property at plot # 60, 61, 76 and 77 admeasuring 16 acres
at Deh Kale Kohar Tehsil Thana Bola Khan district, Dadu Nooriabad Sindh.
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14.4.1

14.5

Since the facility carries the markup rate of 2% which is well below the market interest rate prevailing as on the date of
disbursement of funds, therefore, in accordance with technical opinion issued by the Accounting Standards Board of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) in November 2020, the financing is considered to contain an
element of government grant as per the IAS 20 'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance’. Accordingly, at initial recognition, the Company measured the loan liability at its fair value (determined on a
present value basis) and recognized the difference between the disbursement proceeds received from the bank and the said
fair value, as deferred government grant in the statement of financial position. Subsequently, a portion of this deferred
grant shall be recognized as income in profit or loss in proportion to the recognition of interest cost on the outstanding loan
balance (based on the effective interest rate method).

2022 2021
Rupees
Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy - secured
Opening carrying amount - net of deferred grant 50,430,886 -
Funds borrowed during the year:
Loan proceeds received from the bank 163,027,498 56,983,996
Less: Element of government grant recognized as deferred income (77,014,100) (6,950,626)
86,013,398 50,033,370
Interest recognized on unwinding of the liability 6,331,992 834,949
Loan installments paid during the year (5,789,087) (437.433)
Closing carrying amount - net of deferred grant 136,987,189 50,430,886
Current maturity shown under current liabilities 11,083,980 5,628,558
Non-current maturity shown under non-current liabilities 125,903,209 44,802,328
136,987,189 50,430,886

During the year, the Company obtained a long term financing facility amounting to Rs. 163 million from M/s. Bank Al
Habib Limited under the State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy (REFF) notified vide IH
& SMEFD Circular No. 10 of 2019 dated July 26, 2019. As at the reporting date, the facility available to the Company
under the Scheme amounted to Rs.120 million.

The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows:

(a) The applicable markup rate is 2% per annum;

(b) The tenor of the facility is 10 to 12 years (including 3 months to 2 years moratorium period, commencing from the
date of disbursement of the funds); and

(c) Each tranche of the loan is to be repaid in 39 to 40 equal quarterly instalments.

Since the facility carries an interest rate which is well below the market interest rate prevailing as on the date of
disbursement of funds, the financing is considered to contain an element of government grant as per the IAS 20
'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance'. Accordingly, the Company measured the
loan liability at its fair value (determined on a present value basis) and recognized the difference between the disbursement
proceeds received from the bank and the said fair value as deferred income in the statement of financial position. This
deferred income is being recognized as other income in profit or loss in proportion to the recognition of interest cost on the
outstanding loan balance (based on the effective interest rate method).

This represents long term finance facility (LTFF), under LTFF scheme of State Bank of Pakistan, for the import of
machineries and financing for a period of 10 years against the purpose of retiring the import LC's of machinery. The loan
amount is to be repaid in 10 years expiring in September 2027 to March, 2028 that is secured against hypothecation charge
over plant and machinery of the Company, including 25% margin (1st parri passu charge). The rate of mark-up is SBP
refinance rate plus 0.75% to 1% per annum.
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2022 2021
Financing under Temporary Economic Refinance Rupees
Facility (TERF)

Funds borrowed during the year:

Loan proceeds received from the bank 84,243,200 -
Less: Element of government grant recognized as deferred income (40,063,465) -
44,179,735 -

Interest recognized on unwinding of the liability 1,038,236 -
Loan installments paid during the year - -
Closing carrying amount - net of deferred grant 45,217,971 -
Current maturity shown under current liabilities 2,150,177 -
Non-current maturity shown under non-current liabilities 43,067,794 -
45,217,971 -

During the year, the Company obtained a long-term financing facility amounting to Rs. 84 million from M/s. Bank Al Falah
Limited (BAFL) under the SBP's scheme of Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) notified vide [H & SMEFD
Circular No. 01 of 2020 dated March 17, 2020. As at the reporting date, the facility available to the Company under the
Scheme amounted to Rs. 450 million.

The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows:
(a) The applicable markup rate is 2% per annum;

(b) The tenor of the each tranche of the facility is 10 years (including 2-year moratorium period, commencing from the
date of disbursement of the funds); and

(c) Each tranche of the loan is to be repaid in 32 equal quarterly instalments.

(d) The facility is secured against specific charge over the assets imported utilizing the facility amounting Rs. 450 million,
as well as, hypothecation charge over plant and machinery of the Company, including 25% margin (1st parri passu
charge).

Since the facility carries the markup rate of 2% which is well below the market interest rate prevailing as on the date of
disbursement of funds, therefore, in accordance with technical opinion issued by the Accounting Standards Board of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) in November 2020, the financing is considered to contain an
element of government grant as per the IAS 20 'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance’. Accordingly, at initial recognition, the Company measured the loan liability at its fair value (determined on a
present value basis) and recognized the difference between the disbursement proceeds received from the bank and the said
fair value, as deferred government grant in the statement of financial position. Subsequently, a portion of this deferred
grant shall be recognized as income in profit or loss in proportion to the recognition of interest cost on the outstanding loan
balance (based on the effective interest rate method).

This represents long term finance facility (LTFF), under LTFF scheme of State Bank of Pakistan, for the import of
machineries and financing for a period of 10 years against the purpose of retiring the import LC's of machinery. The loan
amount is to be repaid in 10 years expiring in March 2029, that is secured against hypothecation charge over plant and
machinery to be imported through HBL including margin. The rate of mark-up is SBP refinance rate plus 0.6% per annum.

This represents long term finance facility (LTFF), under LTFF scheme of State Bank of Pakistan, for the import of
machineries and financing for a period of 10 years against the purpose of retiring the import LC's of machinery. The loan
amount is to be repaid in 10 years expiring in July 2030, that is secured against hypothecation charge over plant and
machinery to be imported through HBL including margin of 25%. The rate of mark-up is SBP LTFF rate plus 1.75% per
annum. (with Floor of 3% and Cap of 10%).
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2022 2021
Financing under Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Rupees
Facility (ITERF)

Funds borrowed during the year:

Loan proceeds received from the bank 300,000,000 -
Less: Element of government grant recognized as deferred income (146,060,750) -
153,939,250 -

Interest recognized on unwinding of the liability 1,901,409 -
Loan installments paid during the year (375,581) -
Closing carrying amount - net of deferred grant 155,465,078 -
Current maturity shown under current liabilities 4,935,954 -
Non-current maturity shown under non-current liabilities 150,529,124 -
155,465,078 -

During the year, the Company obtained a long-term financing facility amounting to Rs. 300 million from M/s. Meezan
Bank Limited (MBL) under the SBP's scheme of Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF) notified vide
IH & SMEFD Circular No. 02 of 2020 dated March 17, 2020. As at the reporting date, the facility available to the
Company under the Scheme amounted to Rs. 300 million.

The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows:

(a) 90% of the invoice value of the imported machineries shall be financed under this scheme and remaining 10% will be
financed by the Company itself;

(b) The applicable markup rate is 2% per annum;

(¢) The tenor of the each tranche of the facility is 10 years (including 2-year moratorium period, commencing from the
date of disbursement of the funds); and

(d) Each tranche of the loan is to be repaid in 32 equal quarterly instalments.

(e) The facility is secured against exclusive charge over the assets imported utilizing the facility.

Since the facility carries the markup rate of 2% which is well below the market interest rate prevailing as on the date of
disbursement of funds, therefore, in accordance with technical opinion issued by the Accounting Standards Board of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) in November 2020, the financing is considered to contain an
element of government grant as per the IAS 20 'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance'. Accordingly, at initial recognition, the Company measured the loan liability at its fair value (determined on a
present value basis) and recognized the difference between the disbursement proceeds received from the bank and the said
fair value, as deferred government grant in the statement of financial position. Subsequently, a portion of this deferred
grant shall be recognized as income in profit or loss in proportion to the recognition of interest cost on the outstanding loan
balance (based on the effective interest rate method).

This represents long term finance facility (LTFF), under LTFF scheme of the State Bank of Pakistan, for import of
machineries, to be repaid within 10 years, starting subsequent to the 2 year moratorium, and expiring in January 2032. The
loan is secured against 1st exclusive charge over specific imported machinery of Rs. 1,334 Million with 25% margin duly
insured with bank mortgage clause, to be registered with SECP. Initial drawdown to be allowed against ranking charge
which will be upgraded within 120 days. The rate of mark-up is SBP refinance rate plus 1% per annum.

This represents long term finance facility (LTFF), under LTFF scheme of State Bank of Pakistan, for the import of
machineries and financing for a period of 10 years against the purpose of retiring the import LC's of machinery. The loan
amount is to be repaid in 10 years including 2 years grace period expiring in January 2032, that is secured against First
Parri passu charge over present and future fixed assets (Plant and Machinery only), with 25% margin. Disbursement shall
be allowed against ranking charge, which is to be upgraded into 1st Parri passu charge within 180 days from the date of
first disbursement under the scheme. Markup rate is SBP refinance rate with spread of 1% per annum.
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2022 2021

15. DEFERRED LIABILITIES Note Rupees
Deferred taxation on export debtors 42,626,219 22,053,581
Staff retirement benefits-defined benefits plan (gratuity) 15.1 122,168,372 40,210,560
Provision Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 15.2 237,488,178 334,158,798
Deferred income - Government grant 15.3 795,985,987 580,483,209
1,198,268,756 976,906,148

15.1  Staff retirement benefits-defined benefits plan (gratuity)

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its staff employees. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out
as at June 30, 2022, using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

2022 2021
15.1.1 Movement in defined benefit obligation Rupees
Opening defined benefit obligation 40,210,560 22,027,945
Current service cost 90,617,375 24,642,271
Interest cost 3,302,952 932,907
Benefits paid (14,544,587) (22,105,147)
Remeasurements 2,582,072 14,712,584
Closing defined benefit obligation 122,168,372 40,210,560
15.1.2 Expense recognized in the statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 90,617,375 24,642,271
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 3,302,952 932,907
93,920,327 25,575,178
15.1.3 Remeasurement losses / (gains) recognised in other
comprehensive income
Actuarial losses / (gains) on defined benefit obligation due to:
- Changes in demographic assumptions - (565,005)
- Changes in financial assumptions 3,889,604 (167,899)
- Experience adjustments (1,307,532) 15,445,488
2,582,072 14,712,584
15.1.4 Year end sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation
Discount Rate + 100 bps 119,700,143 39,338,303
Discount Rate - 100 bps 125,141,751 41,129,340
Salary increment rate + 100 bps 125,391,969 41,226,533
Salary increment rate -100 bps 119,412,059 39,228,991

15.1.5 As of the reporting date, the weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 1 year.

2022 2021
15.1.6 Principal actuarial assumptions used Rupees
Discount rate used for interest cost in profit and loss 10.00% 8.50%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 13.25% 10.00%
Expected rate of increase in salary level (per annum) 13.25% 8.00%
Mortality rates SLIC 2001-05 SLIC 2001-2005
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15.3

2022 2021

Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Note Rupees
Opening balance 334,158,798 389,833,965
Effect of unwinding of the provision recognized during the year 24 30,838,827 36,130,908
Charge for the year recognised in profit or loss - 4,675,799
Effect of change in accounting estimate due to change in number

of installment - (65,157,149)
Eftect of change in accounting estimate due to change of date

of Ist Installment 15.2.2 (127,509,447) (31,324,725)
Closing balance 237,488,178 334,158,798

Current maturity shown under current liabilities - -
Non-current maturity shown under non-current liabilities 237,488,178 334,158,798
237,488,178 334,158,798

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Supreme Court (SC) passed two judgements; one dated August 13, 2020, thereby
upholding the levy of GIDC imposed vide GIDC Act, 2015, and stopping further levy with effect from August 13, 2020.
The other judgement dated November 2, 2020 directed payment of amount levied till that date in 48 instalments instead of
24 instalments allowed in order dated August 13, 2020. In view of these judgments of the Apex Court, the Company has
recognized a provision based on units consumed at applicable rates amounting to Rs. 441 million (calculated on an
undiscounted basis).

In 2021, payment of cess was expected to commence from September 2022, however, this matter could not be taken up by
the government due to political uncertainties. Management now expects payment of cess to commence from September
2024. Accordingly, the effect of change in date of commencement of payment amounting to Rs. 127.5 million has been
recognized during the year in these financial statements.

Further, in 2021, the Company also filed a petition with the Sindh High Court (SHC) claiming that they fall within the
category of gas consumers who have not passed on the burden of cess to their customers. SHC vide its order dated
September 29, 2020, restrained the defendants from taking any coercive action against the plaintiffs for non-payment of
installments of GIDC arrears and also from disconnection of gas connections, based on which the Company is not making
payments for the disputed amount as mentioned above.

2022 2021
Deferred income - Government grant Note Rupees
Opening balance 580,483,209 6,221,189
Add: Grant recognized in respect of loan proceeds
received during the year 318,454,707 619,381,280
Less: Amortization for the year 26 (102,951,929) (45,119,260)
Closing balance 795,985,987 580,483,209
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2022 2021

Note Rupees
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 36.3 215,537,738 185,287,130
Accrued liabilities 36.3 324,833,458 248,429,874
Provision for gas rate difference 16.3 183,054,309 183,054,309
Provision for Sindh Infrastructure Cess 16.4 79,000,000 79,000,000
Advance from customers 204,578 23,381,804
Workers' Profits Participation Fund 16.1 247,556,906 80,769,713
Workers Welfare Fund 16.2 115,824,703 59,397,605
Withholding tax payable 26,104,679 10,243,485
Sales tax payable - 61,519,217
Other payable 36.3 25,046,140 14,245,765
1,217,162,511 945,328,902
Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Opening balance 80,769,713 14,585,229
Add:
- Charge for the year 247,556,906 80,769,713
- Interest accrued 24 16,596,516 2,589,377
264,153,422 83,359,090
Less: Payment made during the year (97,366,229) (17,174,606)
247,556,906 80,769,713
Workers' Welfare Fund
Opening balance 59,397,605 28,705,114
Add: Contribution for the year 94,071,624 30,692,491
Less: Payment made during the year (37,644,526) -
115,824,703 59,397,605

On August 31, 2015, the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) issued S.R.O. 876(1)/2015 whereby, with effect from
September 01, 2015, the sale price of natural gas for gas consumers falling under the category 'Industrial' was increased to
Rs. 600 per MMBTU (as against the previously applicable tariff of Rs. 488.23 per MMBTU notified vide S.R.O.
01(I)/2013 dated January 01, 2013). The said notification was widely challenged by companies operating in the textile
industry (including the Company vide Suit No. 129 of 2017) before the Sindh High Court (SHC). In its interim order dated
January 18, 2017, SHC held that, till its further orders, the gas consumers shall continue to deposit their monthly bills at the
rate of Rs. 488.23 per MMBTU and the differential amount of Rs. 111.77 per MMBTU shall be secured by providing post-
dated cheques to the Nazir of the Court. Accordingly, the Company continued to pay its monthly gas bills at the rate of Rs.
488.23 per MMBTU and recognized a provision for the differential liability amounting to Rs. 174.88 million.

Further, the Company made and an additional provision of Rs. 8.17 million in 2021 (being the difference between Rs.
786/MMBTU at which payments were made based on SHC order dated May 25, 2021, and Rs. 819/MMBTU notified by
OGRA for ‘general industry’ category), making a total provision of Rs. 183 million as at June 30, 2022. During the current
year, all payments have been made at billed rate of Rs. 819/MMBTU.

This represents provision for Sindh Infrastructure Cess, introduced through an Act passed by the Sindh provincial assembly
in 2017, related to years 2019 and prior. The Company is submitting bank guarantees each year in respect of unpaid cess,
based on SC's order dated September 19, 2021 (refer note 19.1.1).
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2022 2021
ACCRUED MARKUP Note Rupees

Markup accrued on:

- Long term Financing Facility (LTFF) 25,376,762 21,496,967
- Short term borrowings 123,788,101 75,010,957
149,164,863 96.507.924

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - secured

Bank Al-Habib Limited

- Running finance 18.1 3,761,705,130 2,565,306,408
- Istisna finance (Hypo) 18.2 135,800,000 -
3,897,505,130 2,565,306,408
Meezan Bank Limited
- Istisna finance (Hypo) 18.3 200,616,750 199,997,748
- Istisna finance (Pledge) 18.4 473,794,701 -
674,411,451 199,997,748
MCB Islamic Bank Limited
- Financing Musharka 18.5 - 100,000,000
Bank Al-Falah Limited
- Running finance 18.6 158,226,942 116,463,310
Habib Bank Limited
- Running finance 18.7 14,933,804 116,146,146
18.8 4,745,077,327 3,097,913.612

This represents short term running finance facility amounting to Rs. 1 billion (2021: Rs. 3,700 million) obtained from M/s.
Bank Al-Habib Limited to meet working capital requirements of the Company. The facility carries markup at the rate of 1
month KIBOR plus 0.5% (2021: 1 month KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum) and is secured by registered hypothecation
charge over stock and book debts for Rs. 4,112 billion (2021: Rs. 3 billion), first equitable Pari Passu Mortgage charge
over fixed assets (including land, building and machinery) amounting to Rs 3.542 billion over property located at Plot #
60,61,76 and 77, spread over 16.0 acres at Deh Kale Kohar, Tehsil Thana Bola Khan, district Dadu,Noiriaabad,Sindh ,
personal guarantees amounting to Rs.6.0 billion from each director named as Mr. Abdul Kadir Adam and Mr. Yasin
Siddik.

This represents short term Istisna finance facility obtained during the year amounting to Rs. 135 million from M/s. Bank Al
Habib Limited to facilitate the manufacturing of different types of yarn. The facility carries mark up at the rate of 6 months
KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum and is secured by Registered ranking hypothecation charge primarily over book debts for
Rs. 3 Billion and over moveables for Rs. 3 Billion. As at the reporting date, the facility available to the Company under the
Scheme amounted to Rs.1 billion.

This represents short term Istisna finance facility having a limit of Rs. 350 million (2021 : 350 million ) from M/s. Meezan
Bank Limited to meet working capital requirements of the Company, The facility carries mark up at the rate of 6 months
KIBOR plus 0.50% per annum and is secured by pledge of Local and Imported raw Cotton under effective control of
Mucaddam and charge with approved margin duly registered with SECP with 10% margin at factory of the company
situated at Plot# 58, 60 , 61 and 76, 77, 78 main super highway Nooriabad.

This represents short term Istisna finance facility amounting to Rs. 500 million (2021: Rs. 200 million) obtained from M/s.
Meezan Bank Limited to meet working capital requirements of the Company. The facility carries markup at the rate of
respective KIBOR plus 0.50% per annum and is secured by Parri passu charge over current assets (stock and receivables)
of Rs. 934 million, with 25% margin registered with SECP.

This represents short term Financing Musharikah finance facility amounting to Rs. 100 million obtained from M/s. MCB
Islamic Bank Ltd to meet working capital requirements of the Company. The facility carries markup at the rate of 3 months
KIBOR plus 0.75% p.a. and is secured by st hypothecation charge over current assets (stocks and book debts), and overall
registered hypothecation charge will be of Rs. 133.33 million according to 25% margin.
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19.1

19.1.1

19.1.2

19.1.3

19.1.4

This represents short term running finance facility amounting to Rs. 200 million (2021: Rs. 200 million) obtained from
M/s. Bank Al-Falah Limited to finance the working capital requirements of the Company. The facility carries markup at the
rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 1% (2021: 1 month KIBOR plus 1%) and is secured by first pari passu charge over stocks
and receivables with 25% margin, amounting to Rs. 533.34 million. Disbursement to be allowed against ranking charge
over stock and book debts of the company which shall be upgraded into 1st Parri passu within 120 days from the date of
disbursement.

This represents short term running finance facility amounting to Rs. 125 million (2021: Rs. 125 million) obtained from
M/s. Habib Bank Limited to finance the working capital requirements of the Company. The facility carries markup at the
rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 0.50% ( 2021: 1 month KIBOR plus 0.50%) and is secured by first pari passu hypothecation
charge over stocks and book debts with 25% margin, amounting to Rs. 166.67 million.

As at June 30, 2022, the Company had unavailed short term financing facilities amounting to Rs. 2.054 billion (2021: Rs.
2.077 billion).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

In April 2017, the Provincial Assembly of Sindh passed the Sindh Development and Maintenance of Infrastructure Cess
Act, 2017 (‘the Act') whereby, with effect from July 01, 1994, a cess was levied on the goods entering or leaving the
Province of Sindh from or outside the country by air or sea, at the rate determined on the basis of their value, net weight
and distance in accordance with the Schedule annexed to the Act.

The constitutionality of the Act was challenged by the Company, along with several other petitioners, before the Honorable
Sindh High Court ('SHC"). In the instant petitions, SHC passed interim orders whereby the concerned authority was
restrained from taking any coercive action against the petitioners.

On June 4, 2021, SHC passed an order whereby it declared the Act as a valid law within the competence of the Provincial
Legislature under the Constitution which is applicable retrospectively, and disposed off all listed petitions, and allotted 90
day period for encashment of bank guarantees deposited by the plaintiffs (including the Company).

However, the Company filed an appeal against SHC’s decision in the Supreme Court (SC), which, vide its order dated
September 19, 2021, granted interim relief, based on its opinion that the law, prima facie, suffers from constitutional and
legal defects including competence of provincial legislature to legislate on the subject, and directed that till further orders,
operation of the impugned judgement of SHC dated June 04, 2021 and recovery of impugned levy shall remain suspended.
Further, the petitioners shall keep the bank guarantees already submitted by them pursuant to the orders of SHC valid,
operative and enforceable, and shall furnish fresh bank guarantees equivalent to the amount of levy claimed by the
respondents, against release of future consignments of imported goods.

In the opinion of the legal counsel representing the Company in the suit, the Company has an arguable case and there is no
likelihood of unfavourable outcome. Hence, in view of the above, no provision for the infrastructure cess payable,
amounting to Rs. 181 million (2021: Rs.81 million) has been recognized in these financial statements.

The Company has not recognized the additional amount of cess in respect of GIDC amounting to Rs. 295.6 million (being
the difference of Rs. 441 million recognized in books as mentioned in note 15.2.1, and Rs. 736.8 million as notified to the
Company through monthly gas bills upto July 2020).

The Company has not recognized provision for gas rate differential between Rs. 819 / MMBTU (for export oriented
'general industry' category) and Rs. 852 / MMBTU (for 'captive units') arising out of a notification issued by OGRA in
October 2020, amounting to Rs. 81 million in these financial statements.

On November 11, 2020, the Company received an order from Collector of Customs creating a demand of Rs. 27.498
million (with a penalty of Rs. 500,000 in respect of tax credit on import of machinery. The Company filed an appeal before
the Customs Appellate Tribunal (Karachi) which is pending adjudication. Earlier, the Company had also filed a
constitutional petition with Sindh High Court (SHC), which vide its order dated December 24, 2019 had directed that no
adverse action be taken against the petitioner. The legal counsel of the Company is of the opinion that the case is likely be
decided in favour of the Company, and therefore, no provision has been made in these financial statements.
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20.

20.1
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21.

Commitments

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure

Letter of credit to Sui Southern Gas Company Limited

Letters of guarantee

Letters of credit issued in respect of purchase of raw materials

SALES - net

Local sales

Export sales - indirect
Export sales - direct
Wastage sales

Raw material sales

Less:
Commission and brokerage
Discount and claims

Local Sales

Gross sales
Less: sales tax

Export sales - indirect

Gross sales
Less: sales tax

Wastage sales

Gross sales
Less: sales tax

Raw material sales

Gross sales
Less: Sales tax

COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed
Stores and spares consumed
Packing materials consumed
Conversion costs

Work in process:
- Opening stock
- Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured

Cost of goods purchased for sale
Opening stock of finished goods and waste material

Cost of goods available for sale

Closing stock of finished goods and waste material
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Note

20.1
20.2

20.3
204

21.1
21.2
21.3
214

215

2022

2021

Rupees

1,032,543,700 951.400.600
77.900.000 77.900.000
269.642.340 175.942.340
3.578,773.100 211.320.300
470,033,084 370,348,732
15,229,495,519 9.280.469,117
3,865,648,085 1,906,024.,278
14,949,231 11,817,033
613,390,934 47,340,418
20,193,516,853 11,615,999.578
(209,543,096) (116,368,787)
(7,160,626) (15.164.087)
(216,703,722) (131,532,874)
19,976,813,131 11,484.466.704
547,618,655 433,314,358
(77,585,571) (62.965.,626)
470,033,084 370.348.732
17,817,394,611 10,857,001,480
(2,587,899,092) (1,576,532,363)

15,229,495,519

9.280,469,117

—_—

17,490,603 13,825,928
(2,541,372) (2,008.895)
14,949,231 11,817.033
717,516,943 55,397,147
(104,126,009) (8,056,729)
613,390,934 47.340.418
11,072,416,911 6,454.879.468
382,306,734 327,804,543
213,429,268 134,756,570
2,386,053,266 1,884,916,759
14,054,206,179 8,802,357.340
91,552,737 77,198,657
(140,141,739) (91,552,737)
(48,589,002) (14,354,080)
14,005,617,177 8,788,003.260
271,255,962 41,532,563
339,689,913 540,333,820
14,616,563,052 9,369,869,643
(221,836,370) (339,689,913)
14,394,726,682 9.030,179.730




21.1

21.2

21.3

21.4

21.4.1

21.5

2022 2021

Raw materials consumed Note Rupees

Opening stock - in hand 2,841,951,125 2,531,014,613

Purchases 12,975,383,344 6,803,792,715
15,817,334,469 9,334,807,328

Sale of raw materials (271,255,962) (37,976,735)

Closing stock - in hand 7 (4,473,661,596) (2,841,951,125)
11,072,416,911 6,454,879,468

Stores and spares consumed

Opening stock - in hand 173,719,575 99,045,001

Purchases 384,067,921 402,479,117
557,787,496 501,524,118

Closing stock - in hand (175,480,762) (173,719,575)
382,306,734 327,804,543

Packing materials consumed

Opening stock 20,730,401 15,107,731

Purchases 227,765,406 140,379,240
248,495,807 155,486,971

Closing stock 7 (35,066,539) (20,730,401)
213,429,268 134,756,570

Conversion costs

Salaries, wages and other benefits 21.4.1 857,253,478 631,949,333
Fuel and power 754,375,424 646,137,781
Depreciation 4.1.1 666,697,765 518,675,332
Insurance 51,408,109 24,416,757
Vehicle running and maintenance 21,429,159 16,553,547
Repairs and maintenance 18,332,234 11,708,950
Water charges 13,927,975 10,964,475
Other manufacturing expenses 2,629,122 24,510,584

2,386,053,266 1,884,916,759

This includes an amount of Rs. 71,143,788 (2021: Rs. 18,594,970) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

2022 2021
Rupees

Cost of goods procured for sale
Trading cost - sale of raw material 271,255,962 37,976,735
Purchase of yarn - 1,766,000
Purchase of hard - waste - 1,789,828
Purchase of comber - waste - -

271,255,962 41,532,563
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2022 2021

Note Rupees
22. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 22.1 127,434,622 75,406,490
CEO and Directors' remuneration 36.3 20,000,000 16,200,000
Charity and donations 22.3 44,235,000 10,198,000
Depreciation 4.1.1 35,228,688 10,798,358
Travelling and conveyance 15,132,282 321,486
Insurance 12,100,544 10,117,693
Repairs and maintenance 11,930,546 9,878,150
Fees and subscription 11,514,991 9,476,859
Vehicle running and maintenance 7,299,940 7,741,336
Utilities 3,629,830 5,212,646
Auditors' remuneration 22.3 2,596,800 1,691,250
Entertainment expense 2,166,736 1,191,180
Printing and stationery 2,019,243 982,061
Postage and telephone 1,587,692 1,594,862
Legal and professional 1,248,483 2,766,146
Meeting fees 840,000 700,000
Advertisement 569,256 397,244
Newspaper and periodicals 89,399 90,566
Provision for doubtful debt 8.2 - 15,920,095
Others 11,694,347 8,426,017

311,318,399 189,110,439

22.1  This includes an amount of Rs. 22,776,539 (2021: Rs. 6,980,708) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

22.2  None of the directors or their spouse had any interest in the donees. Further, the particulars of the parties to whom donation
paid exceeds Rs. 1 million or 10% of the total donation, whichever is higher, are as follows:

2022 2021
Rupees
Bantva Memon Hospital 12,250,000 -
Patients' Aid Foundation 10,000,000 2,000,000
The Citizens Foundation 3,000,000 -
Descon Technical Institute 2,500,000 -
The Indus Hospital 2,000,000 2,200,000
Saylani Welfare International 2,000,000 -
Patient Behbud Society of AKUH 1,500,000 -
Akhuwat and Jamal Noor Hospital 1,500,000 -
Shaukat Khanum Cancer Hospital 1,000,000 1,500,000
Sindh Institute of Urology and Transplant 1,000,000 1,500,000
Patel Hospital 1,000,000 -
Agha Khan University Hospital 1,000,000 -
2022 2021
Rupees
22.3  Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee 2,000,000 1,297,604
Half yearly review fee 500,000 305,646
Out of pocket expenses 96,800 88,000

2,596,800 1,691,250
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2022 2021

23. DISTRIBUTION COSTS Note Rupees

Freight and handling charges:

- Local 92,062,100 75,658,362

- Export 193,098,327 80,607,828

285,160,427 156,266,190

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 27,297,349 27,851,889

Packing charges 2,137,936 11,338,219

314,595,712 195,456,298

24. FINANCE COSTS

Markup and interest charges on:

- Long term finances 237,925,040 154,207,370

- Short term borrowings 548,885,890 368,134,151

- Workers' Profit Participation Fund 16.1 16,596,516 2,589,377
Unwinding of Gas Infrastructure Cess Provision 152 30,838,827 36,130,908
Bank charges on export receipts 20,658,198 12,486,092
Bank charges 20,899,999 23,884,990
875,804,470 597,432,888

25. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' Welfare Fund 94,071,624 30,692,491
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 247,556,906 80,769,713
341,628,530 111,462,204

26. OTHER INCOME / (EXPENSES) - net

Exchange gain/ (loss) on export receivables:

- Realized 108,144,405 (10,290,380)
- Unrealized 8,791,244 1,598,434
116,935,649 (8,691,946)
Unrealized exchange gain on bank balance 28,399,110 -
Realized gain on dealing in foreign commodity markets 26.1 378,050,201 -
Realized exchange gain on import of fixed assets
and raw material 79,373,377 193,392
Gain on re-measurement of Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess provision 127,509,447 96,481,874
Amortization of deferred government grant 15.3 102,951,929 45,119,260
Reversal of provision for expected credit losses 8.2 14,397,108 -
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 13,114,024 10,004,329
Income against customs 9,939,405 -
Others 100,000 -
870,770,250 143,106,909

26.1 This represents gain realised through transactions entered into for purchase of cotton in the commodities market in New
York, and selling it at higher prices.

2022 2021
27. TAXATION Note Rupees
Current 27.1 278,559,570 112,840,713
Deferred 20,572,638 4,832,547
299,132,208 117,673,260

27.1 The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised up to and including the tax year 2021. Tax returns are
deemed to be assessed under provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ("the Ordinance") unless selected for an audit
by the taxation authorities. The Commissioner of Income Tax may, at any time during a period of five years from date of
filing of return, select the deemed assessment order for the purpose of issuing an amended assessment order.
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28.
28.1

28.2

29.

30.

30.1

31.

31.1

2022 2021
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED Rupees

Basic earnings per share

Profit after taxation 4,310,377,380 1,386,258,794
Number

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 6,163,000 6,163,000

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 699.40 224.93

Diluted earnings per share

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, since there were no potential outstanding
convertible instruments in issue as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows are reconciled to the
related items in the statement of financial position as follows:

2022 2021
Note Rupees
Cash and bank balances 11 286,160,873 93,950,542
Short term borrowings - running finance 18 (3,934,865,876) (2,797,915,864)

(3,648,705,003) (2,703,965,322)

REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTURS EXECUTIVES TUTAL
X A iy 4 i 1l ann bl
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Fuslalom g5y : + = - 1838 87 a Ly
Ctlig bt ' . Ld L 11300 Ll LEHAZ
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PAYA PAVIAS Y
PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION Number
Number of spindles / rotors installed 91,782 85,538
Number of spindles / rotors operated 87,742 81,348
Installed capacity in Kgs. after conversion
into 20 single count 42,257,781 33,349,596
Actual production of yarn in Kgs. after conversion
into 20 single count 39,968,903 31,432,443
Number of shifts worked during the year 1,092 1,092

Actual production is less than the installed capacity due to planned maintenance shut down and gap between market
demand and supply.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
32.1 Financial risk management

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

32.1.1 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to

discharge an obligation.

A financial asset is regarded as credit impaired as and when it falls under the definition of a 'defaulted' financial asset. For
the Company’s internal credit management purposes, a financial asset is considered as defaulted when it is past due for 90
days or more.

The Company writes off a defaulted financial asset when there remains no reasonable probability of recovering the
carrying amount of the asset through available means.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Juaw 30, W fume 30, 2021
Canying Max imwm Canving Mxgmun
A0 EDE ERETHITT b SApoET
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Trade debis e A 406, 90T 05 4,455 952 034 1099 215450 199212 450
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considered doubtful of recovery.

As of the reporting date, the ageing analysis of trade debts was as follows:
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32.1.2
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1,288,038
4,473,660, 009

1450 603

I -ETD 304 752

I'he Company's credit risk on liquid tunds 1s limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit
ratings. As of the reporting date, the external credit ratings of the Company's bankers were as follows:

Credit

. A 2022 2021
Short term rating  rating

Banks / other institutions agency Rupees
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ JCR-VIS 35,463,785 28,167,720
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A-1+ PACRA 7,901,305 45,837,885
Bank Al-Habib Limited A-1+ PACRA 232,340,433 15,436,825
National Bank of Pakistan A-1+ PACRA 5,904,935 1,945,928
MCB Bank Limited A-1+ PACRA 992,019 188,467
Bank of Khyber A-1 PACRA 20,010 20,614
Askari Bank Limited A-1+ PACRA 1,603,405 -
Central Depository Company - - 5,000 -

284,230,892 91,597,439

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same party,
or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have
similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes
in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. The Company is exposed to concentration of credit risk in
respect of balance with one major bank and one major foreign customer.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of adequate funds
through committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions due to dynamic nature of the business. The
Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate
mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The management aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping regular committed credit lines.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments (in case of long
term loan):
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Bows Jeun Fear
Rupres

Mon-derivadiee

Timamcial Hahbiligies

Lomg term finandimg 214,537,188 A A LA, &0, 082 FON_SES O05 ER1T EASFTE

Trale aned ofhed praialides E&E 417 0%G EAE AT MG EgE a1 T kG -

Accrued malicup L4864, X683 189, D68, FaN LA LGLBER

S ot T, Baroengs A, TAEOTT AT 4, TEEOTT AIT A FAEDTT _AET

10,774, 506, 04 11 B8 & b0, S0k &, DES, TE4, B0 E_R17 565 974
2001
Castying amssuni Comiractual caik Twelve masths or Nlorve than One
Fhiracs less WEETE

Hon-derivabive Fuapean

Muamcial lFabilizies

Lowg 1enm financing d, TG D0 116 SEI6 4T 528 515993 328 2010 349,211

Traefe aoed oy puatvabiles 47 BH2 TED 287 A2 TED A47 D82 TED -
32.1.3 Accrusd mmloup 80,307 524 Bd 07 504 = | -

Bl torm i o 3007 913 8652 E R e P OIS A G

B &0T Voo 4]

S 488 THE Fdd

A 1AE FT 2%

L

market prices. Market risk comprises three types ot risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
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(a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transaction in foreign currency. The
Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

Exposure to foreign currency risk
The Company, as at reporting date, is exposed to foreign currency risk on trade debts and bank balances that are

denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currency of the Company. Those transactions are
denominated in US Dollars.

Fwne 30, 333 Fagne A0 2031

Hmpres LR Diallar Fiapren = LS Dhaliars
T're=fs da'bis AR08 AR DEE § isdearal L, OeS R3S i Lt e
Bank balance 212,036,407 $ 1.039.903.91 - -

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

ki ey 2021
Reporting date Hepoming date
Average iy il Average rale s
Rupees
LIS Drollar 17812 JLN, Hd 162.71 157 54

Sensitivity analysis

As of the reporting date, 5% strengthening / (weakening) of the Pak Rupee against the US Dollars would have decreased /
(increased) the profit before tax of the Company by the amount shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in par cular interest rates, remain constant.

Effect on profit
before tax
—— Rupees —
As at June 30, 2022 32,530,267
As at June 30, 2021 9.588.412

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short and long term borrowings from
banks and term deposits with banks. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing
financial instruments was as follows:

e | am wn [ o
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(¢) Price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in the market prices (other than those arising from interest/ mark up rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar
financial instruments traded in the market. As of the reporting date, the Company was not exposed to any price risk.
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32.14

32.15

33.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and the fair
value estimates.

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair
values.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used
in making the measurements:

Level 1:  Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market.
Level 2:  Valuation techniques based on observable inputs.

Level 3:  Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where the
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data.

Presently, items in the financial statements that are carried at fair value are plant and machinery and electrical installations.
The Company engages an independent external valuer to carry out a fresh revaluation of these operating fixed assets to
ensure that their carrying amounts in the financial statements do not differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair value at the end of the reporting period. Such valuation usually involves the use of observable and unobservable
inputs; however, the weightage of observable inputs used is considered as significant. Accordingly, the Company classifies
the aforesaid classes of operating fixed assets within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The management considers that the carrying amount of all other assets and liabilities recognised in the financial statements
approximate their fair value.

2022 2021
Financial instruments by categories Rupees
FINANCIAL ASSETS - at amortised cost
Long term deposits 2,768,255 2,768,255
Trade debts 4,466,962,934 2,199,212,480
Deposits and other receivables 32,665,962 9,477,058
Cash and bank balances 286,160,873 93,950,542
4,788,558,024 2,305,408.335

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- at amortised cost
Long term financing 5,314,937,168 4,760,006,126
Trade and other payables 565,417,336 447,962,769
Accrued markup 149,164,863 96,507,924
Short term borrowings 4,745,077,327 3,097,913,612

10,774,596,694 8,402,390,431

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. The management closely monitors the return on capital along with the level of
distributions to ordinary shareholders.

The management seeks to maintain a balance between higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

Following is the quantitative analysis of what the Company manages as capital:

Borrowings:
Long term financing 5,314,937,168 4,760,006,126
Short term borrowings 4,745,077,327 3,097,913,612
10,060,014,495 7,857,919,738
Shareholders' equity:
- Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 61,630,000 61,630,000
- Unappropriated profit 7,000,291,403 3,307,989,262
7,061,921,403 3,369,619,262
Total capital managed by the Company 17,121,935,898 11,227,539,000
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34.

35.

36.

36.1

36.2

36.3

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties comprise of associated companies, key management personnel of the Company and directors and their close
family members. Remuneration and benefits to executives of the Company are in accordance with the terms of the
employment. Remuneration of the Chief Executive and Director is disclosed in note 30 to these financial statements.
Transactions entered into and balances held, with related parties during the year, other than those disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, are as follows:

Name of the Transactions during the year and year 2022 2021
related party end balances Rupees
Premium Knits Transaction during the year

Sale of goods 299,063,642 47,685,211

Balance at the year end
Trade receivable 263,790,117 423,655

Pinnacle Fibre (Pvt)  Tramsaction during the year
Ltd. Purchase of goods 534,487,693 281,831,803

Balance at the year end
Trade payable 7,845,123 -

SEGMENT INFORMATION

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment i.e. sale and manufacturing of
yarn. The entity-wide disclosures required by IFRS 8 'Operating Segments' are given below:

(a) Revenue from sale of yarn represents 96.89% (2021 : 99.49%) of the total revenue of the Company.

(b) 97.54% (2021: 96.72%) of gross sales of the Company relates to indirect exporters and foreign customers.

(c) As at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 all non-current assets of the Company were located in Pakistan.

(d) Revenue earned from one major customer having sales excluding sales tax and federal excise duty of more than 10%
of total sales amounted to Rs. 4,836 million during the year ended 30 June 2022 (2021: 1,459 million).

GENERAL

Non - adjusting event after balance sheet date

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on October 4, 2022 has proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 50 per share

(2021: Rs. 50 per share) for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on October 26, 2022. The
financial statements do not reflect this appropriation.

2022 2021
Number of employees Number
Total employees of the Company at the year end 1,097 990
Average employees of the Company during the year 970 1,006

Reclassification of corresponding figures

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to comply with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 and for the purpose of comparison and better presentation. Following
reclassifications have been made in these financial statements.
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36.4

Reclassified from component

Advance to suppliers
(Advances, deposits and other receivables)

Advance to suppliers
(Advances, deposits and other receivables)

Accrued liabilities
(Trade and other payables)

Creditors
(Trade and other payables)

CEOQO and Directors' remuneration
(Administrative expenses)

Executive remuneration
(Distribution costs)

Reclassified to component

Capital work in progress
(Property, plant and equipment)

Advances
(Long term advances and deposits)

Provision for Sindh Infrastructure Cess
(Trade and other payables)

Other payable
(Trade and other payables)

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
(Administrative expenses)

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
(Distribution costs)

Date of authorization for issue of the financial statements

Amount
(Rupees)

3,209,886

15,550,000

79,000,000

14,245,765

28,696,536

12,997,380

These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on

October 4,2022.

Level of rounding

Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

/
e

Chief Executive Officer
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Mr./ Mrs. [ M/s

Dear Shareholder,

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDENDS INSTEAD OF PHYSICAL DIVIDEND WARRANTS

Pursuant to Section 242 of the Companies Act-2017 and notification by the Security Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) that all listed companies must pay future cash dividends electronically mode into the bank

accounts of the shareholders instead of issuing physical dividend warrants.

We have reviewed and found that you have not yet provided a bank mandate. In this regard, you are required to
provide bank mandate details with IBANs otherwise future dividends could be withheld according to the section
242 and directives of SECP.

CDC shareholders may submit their bank mandate details to their investor account services or their brokers where
shares are placed electronically.

For any query/ problem/information, the investors may contact the company, and / or the Share Registrar at the
following phone Numbers, email address:

Premium Textile Mills Pvt Ltd.

F.D.Registrar 1 st Floor, Haji Adam Chamber
Services (SMC-Pvt) Ltd. Altaf Hussain Road, New Challi,
17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, Karachi.74000.

l.I.Churdrigar Road, Karachi. Tel: 32400405-8, 32416380
Ph-0213-2271905-6 Fax: 32417908

e-mail: premhead@premiumtextile.com
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M/s.Premium Textile Mills Ltd,
1st floor, Haji Adam Chamber,
Altaf Hussain Road,New Challi,
Karachi.

Bank Mandate Form

| Mr. / Ms./Mrs. S/o, D/o, w/o, hereby authorize
Premium Textile Mills Ltd to send /directly credit cash dividends declared by it, in my bank account as detailed

below:

(i) Shareholder’s details

Name of the Shareholder

Participant & Account # CDC Investor #

CNIC NO. / NTN

Passport No. (in case of foreign shareholder)

Landline / Cell Number of the Shareholder

(ii) Shareholder’s Bank detail

Bank’'s Name

Branch Name and Address

Branch Code Number.

Title of Bank Account

Account Number

IBAN

Shareholder’s details

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct to the best of my knowledge and | shall keep the
Company/ Share Registrar informed in case of any changes in the said particulars in future.

Signature of the shareholder

Note: Bank mandate details must be verified by the concerned Bank Branch to avoid any error.
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FORM OF PROXY

PREMIUM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
1st Floor, Haji Adam Chambers,

Altaf Hussain Road,

New Challi,

Karachi

Please quote Reg. CDC Number
I/'WE
of
being a member of Premium Textile Mills Limited and holder of

Ordinary Shares hereby appoint
of

or failing him/her
of

as my/our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual general
neeting of the Company to be held on October 27th, 2021 at 03.30 p.m. at 1st Floor, Haji Adam Chamber,
Altaf Hussain Road, New Challi, Karachi.

Signed this day of 2021 in the
presence of

(Witness Signature)

Affix

Five Rupees

Revenue Stamp

(Signature of Proxy) (Member's Signature)

Note: (i) This form of proxy, in order to be effecive, must be deposited duly completed with the Company
not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

(i1) The proxy must be signed across a Rs. 5/- Revenue Stamp.
(ii1) Signature should agree with the specimen registered with the Company.
(iv) Proxies granted by shareholders who have deosited their shares into Central Depository

Company of Pakistan Limited must be accompanied with attested copies of the Computerized

National Identity card (CNIC) or the Passport of the bebeficial owners. Representatives of Corporate

members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

(v) In case of CDC Accounts Holders, attested copies if CNIC or the Passport of the beneficial
owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.
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